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PROCEEDINGS
MR. FELOS: Call Father Murphy.
THE BAILIFF: Stand here, raise your
right hand to take the cath.

{THEREUPON, THE WITNESS WAS SWORN ON OATH BY

THE COURT.)
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:
Q State your full name, please.

A Gerard Murphy.

Q Father Murphy. are you an crdained
priest in any particular faith?

A Yes. Roman Catholic.

Q To what work are you assigned in the
church at this time?

A At presgent, I am the pastor of St. Ann's
Church, Ridge Manner, in Hernando County.

Q Can you tell us about St. Ann's parish?

A Very small. A country pa;ish. About
400 families. Mostly elderly. People are sick.
On the edge of life.

Q Father Murphy, can you please tell us
your educaticnal and clerical background?

A Well, I graduated from college, seminary

college. Then went to graduate school. Four
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years of theology. Also graduated with six units
of c¢linical pastoral educaﬁion, which is an
international movement of supervised pastors
ministry. Each unit was 400 hours of supervised
ministry in the health care setting. So I

achieved 2400 hours of intensive supervised

training.

Q What degree did you cbtain in gradugte
school?

A Masters of Divinity.

Q Your undergraduate degree was in?

A Bachelors of Philosophy.

Q Father Murphy, when were you crdained?

A 1979. May.

Q I'd like you to describe for us,

chronologically, your work in the church since
that time.

A Okay. The first eight years I was an
assistant pastor at Most Holy Name in Guliport
Florida. From there I went for a year to Bayfront
Medical Center, actually St. Mary's in downtown
St. Pete, to be the CatholiC'chabzain at Bayfront
Medical Center. I went back to Most Holy Name for
a year-and-a-half, two years. Then I was employed

by Sarasota Memorial Hospital as a Catholic
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chaplain for three years. Back to 5t. Petergburg
as Director of Pastoral Care at St. Anthony's-

And several more years as assistant pastor helping
cut in parishes throughout the dioceses where
needed. And three years in my present assignment
as pastor.

Q Let's talk first about, it was Hely Name
parish in Gulfport?

A - Yes.

e You were there azbout eight years?

A Eight years.

Q Please describe the nature of your
clerical work there.

A Ninety percent «f my parish work was at
the hogpital. Palms of Pasadena is small, but
very active. Virtually all the census was
Catheolic. VNinety percent of my time was there;

Q With your work at Palms of Pasadena
wﬁile at Most Holy Name parish, did you have the
opportunity to work with families and counsel
families who were faced with end of life care and
medical treatment decisions?

A Definitely.

0 Removal of life support decisions?

A Definitely.

180




22

23

24

25

Q I believe yéu menticned that during that
period you were the chaplain at Bayfront Medical
Center?

A I was assigned to St. Mary's Cathollc
church downtown, but I covered Bayfront for them.

Q Please describe your duties as chaplain
at Bayfront.

A Well, you know, certainly it's
administration of the sacrament, but a much larger
role than that today. Simply because there are so
many questions, moral guestions. It is not as
easy to die as it used to be. So there are an
awful lot. of guestions that come up. It is a
matter of helping families work their way through
it.

o} How many families would you say you
counseled and worked with in that area when you
were chaplain at Bayfront?

A At Bayfront for that year, a hundred
probably. ‘

Q And before at Most Holy Name parish, how
many?

A Hundreds.

Q I believe you menticned that after,

after your service at Most Holy Name parish, you
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were the Cathelic chaplain at Sarasota Memorial

Hogpital?

A Yes.

Q And how long?

A Just under three years.

o] Tell us about the nature of your duties
at Sarascta Memorial Hosgpital as chaplain.

A Same as at the previous hospital.
However, thig time I was employed by the hospital,
so my time was exclusively theirs. At Sarasota, I
was co-chairman of the Violation Commission and
virtualiy all my work was in bicethical
consultations with families and physicians.

Q Please describe the workings of the
Bioethics Committee at Sarasota Hospital.

A A large group of people from all the
disciplines in the hospital. Social workers.
Physicians. Attorneys. Risk management.
Everyone who has any input into the hospital
system. And presenting from that large group was
& small group that made consultations. So if
there was a family that had a problem, a physician
that had a problem, or nurse, they had access to
the consultation.

They would call us, and then a
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representative group of us would meet with them,
everyone, and try to resolve the situation.

Q Is it fair to say that the situations
where cases were presented to the Bicethics
Committee regarding remcval of life support were
the tough cases?

A Sure. By all means.

Q Afrer Sarasota Memorial, I believe you
mentioned you were the Director of Pastoral Care
at St. Anthony's Hospital?

A Yes.

Q ° Is that a religious -- does St.

Anthony's have a religious affiliation?

A It's run by Franciscan Sisters of
Albany. -

e Is that a Catholic hospital?

A Yez.

Q How about Sarascta Memorial?

A No. County.

Q Please tell us your duties as Director
of Pastoral Care at St. Anthony's

a iz was more administration, although I
did keep my hands in ethi¢s. I was the co-founder
of their first bicethics committee. It was judst

gtarting. It was getting it off the ground,
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rather than real well organized like Sarascta.

Q Father Murphy, is it possible for you to
tell us on how many cccasions you have rendered
pastoral clinical care regarding the subject of

life care?

A Over the course of my priesthood?
o Yes.

A I would say hundreds.

Q Father Murphy, have you done any

research or writing regarding the opinions of the
Cathelic church as it concerns end of life care
and treatment issues? The religiocus and moral
implications of that?

a Yes. I do quite a bit of writing and
publishing. I have written a series of pamphlets.
I have published articles in c¢lerical journals.
Mostly because of my desire to educate. I find
that mcst people have no idea what the Catholic
church teaches. Even Catholics. And I think that
is gives rise to grave misunderstandings and I
have real fears about thét.

So I have taken to writing and public
speaking about it. We give talks arocund the
dioceses. 1 take that very sericusly and I do

quite a bit of that.
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188
0 You mentioned you had written a number

of pamphlets on this subject. Are they used and
distributed to any particular audiences or groups?

A Sure. Everywhere I can. I sent one,
two of them, o a priest in one of the magazines I
publish in frequently. He put a thing in his
columr, So I was deluged all over the country,
but mostly in the State of Florida we distribuée
;hem to parishes wherever we can. Hospitals.

Q Is the distribution of ﬁhose pamphiets
authorized by the church authorities?

A Yes.

MR. FELOS: Your Heonor, at this time we
offer Father Murphy as an expert in the area of
the Catholic church's position on end of life care
and treatment issues and clinical counseling on
end of life care and treatment issueé.

THE COURT: Do you wish to voir dire?

MS. CAMPBELL: Yes. I do. Thank vou,

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY M3. CAMPRELL:

Q Father Murphy, which diocese are you
with?
A I am secular as opposed to being a &

" Jesuit or Dominican or Franciscan, which follow
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the rule of that particular saint. I was just

"ordained to a diocese and obey a bishop.

Q You said you went to four years of

theology. Where was that?

- Seminary of St. Vincent De Paul. Boyton
Beach.

Q .Do you have any education as a medical
ethicist?

A Ko. Not formal training.

Q Do you have any education as a moral
theologist?

A From my training, I mean seminary

training, sure. We take courses in that.
Q So that would be included in the four

years of theology?

A Yeg, ma'am.
Q Are you considered a moral theclogian?
A It depends in whose eyes. I'm the one

they call in the diocese of St. Petersburg when,
they have guestions.

Q De you function in any official capacity
to the diocese?

A Yes. The diccese chaplain for the
Catholic Medical Association. The statewide

chaplain for the Catholic Medical Asscciation. I
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am a member of Dioceses and Task Force in assisted
suicide. Formerly certified as a national
chaplain. I let my membership lapse.

MS. CAMPBELL: I have no objection.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. Proceed,
Mr. Felos.

o] (By Mr. Feles) Father, in the Catholic
church, do papal teachings or proncuncements hold
primacy as compared to the teachings and
pronouncements of bishops or cardinals?

A Yes. The pope sets the tone.

Q Are there any papal pronouncements or
teachings in the area on use or removal of
arctificial life support?

A In 1353, Pope Pius the IV met with a
group of physicians who considered those guestions
in ccnference. Pius was almost prophetic in
foreseeing what would happen fifty -- forty years
later. The teaching that he taught was that
Catholics are mortally bound to respect life and
to care for life, but not at all costs.

He introduced the concept of extordinary
versus ordinary means. A Catholic is mortally

bound toc take advantage of ordinary,
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188
proportionate or disproportionate.

Q Has the phraseology proportionate or
dispropeortionate, as opposed to ordinary, been
explored more prevalent in the Catholic church as
of late?

A Yes., Sure. Because of the problem it
is not ag easy to die as it used to be. Nature
would have taken care of a great many situations
30 or 40 years ago. My belief in the health care
system is that technology is a two-edged sword.
The wonderful technoclogy meant to heal and save’
pecple and get them back on the road can also
interfere with nature.

Q What factors does the Catholic church
take into consideration in determining whether a
treatment is an ordinary action as opposed to
extracrdinary or proportionate as opposed to
disproportionate?

A It's not the procedure. It's the
perception of the patient. Is the procedure, is
it too emotionally draining? Is it too
psychologicaziy repugnant? It is too expensive?
Does it offer no hope of treatment -- of recovery
or little or no hope? Based upon all those

factors, then you make your moral decision based
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upon those issues.

Q So as I understand it, the standard by
which those moral criteria are examined is the
subjective standard of the patient? ’

A Yesg.

Q In some of the literature I've read,
I've come across the terms burdensome and
useless. That is, a Catholic is not required te
have a medical treatment if it ig burdensome or
useless. How do those concepts fit in with the.
ones with what you just mentioned?

A Maybe if I gave an example it might be
easier. You look like kind of a healthy guy. Say
you caught pneumonia this flurseason. You go to
your doctor. -He would prescribe a course of
antibiotics for you. You would be better soon and
back on the road.

But as a case I actually hapdled in
Bayfront, St. Petersburg, many years ago, a woman
in her late seventies was filled with cancer in
the bronchial tree. She was dying. She came down
with that pneumonia and the daughter insisted thatr
the mother be treated for that pneumonia. I said
why are you deing this? what do you hope to

accompligh?
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What you always héve to do is weigh the
proportion. What do you hope to accomplish
against what it is going to take to get there. In
that case, all she was doing was keeping the
mother alive for an extra three or four weeks in
corder to die. So that was clearly a case of
prolonging the inevitable, as opposed to someone
like you who comes down with that pneumonia.

o] Does the church then permit the
conaideration of whether or not the patient has
any hope of recovery in whether the treatment may
help the patient recover in considering whether it
is ordinary or extraordinary?

A Yes.

Q Let's take a case that medical treatment
or artificiai life support may be medically
beneficial. If artificial life support may be
medically beneficial, if the patient deemed it too
psychologically or emotionally burdensome for
himself or herself, could such a patient refuse
artificial 1ife support and still be in compliance
with the church's teachings?

A Yeg.

o Father Murphy, what materials did you

review in preparation for your testimony in this

=
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case?

A The depostions of the family. The
depositions of the -- the deposition of the
husband. I'm not sure about that. I'm not sure.
I know I reviewed the family and the report of the
physicians.

Q I want you to assume, Father Murphy, for
purposes of this question that Theresa Schiavo
rold her husband that if she were dependent on the
care of others she would not want to live 1ikem
that. And also Theresa Schiavo mentioned to her
husband and to her brother and sister-in-law that
she would not want to be kept alive artificially.

Assuming that information to be correct,
Pather, would the removal of Theresa Schiave's
feeding tube be consistent or inconsistenttwith
the position of the Catholic church?

A After all that has transpired, I
believe, yes, it would be consistent with the
teaching of the Catheolic church.

Q How would you define, Father Murphy., a
practicing Catholic?

A Off, that's a tough one.

Q Let me rephrase it. Does the church

have any particular definition cf what a
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192
practicing Cathelic is? :

A Certainly. We have what we call Easter
duty, which means sometime from Lent to Trinicy
Sunday, in that three or four month window, a
Catholic is required to receive holy communion.
1f necessary, confession. Catholics are mortally
bound to asgist ar mass. Attend mass every
Sunday. Every holy day cf cbligaticon. Certainly
these are all criteria for a practicing Catholié.

Q If Theresa Schiavo had not taken
communicn over a two year period before her
medical incident and not participatéd in
confession, would she be considered by the church
to be a practicing Catholic?

A Not according to the criteria. No.
Practicing, no.

Q Now Father Murphy, if a patient is in a
permanent vegetataive condition, maintained by
artificial iife support, and the patient's intent
is not known, c¢an a loved one who has the best
interests of the patient at heart authorize
removal of artificial life support consistent with
church teachings?

A I think in a2 case like this where so

much time and effort has elapsed, I think, yes,=it
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would be consistent. You have to remember, the

church will always uphold the ideal. One of the
things they will do is hit the brakes, as it were,
to make sure nobody is rushing into judgment.
Trying tc push the patient out of the picture.

In view of the lencth and effort here, I
would say yves. What you would hope for is
somebody who cared about the best interest of the
patient to make the decision for them.

Q And such a decision by that -- a
decision to remove the feeding tube by such a
person would be consistent with the church
reachings?

A I believe so, from my understanding of
the church teachings.

Q You mentioned you reviewed the

depositions of Theresa's parents and siblings?

A Yes.

Q I want to ask you some guestions about
those. ‘

A Yes.

Q There are statements by Mr. and Mrs.

Schindler and their siblings that if they were in
a permanent vegetative or unconscious state, with

nc hope of recovery, that they would want all
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194
medical treatments and ‘procedures to keep them

alive. Do you recall those statements in the

depositions you read?

A Yes.
Q Is that the position of the Catholic
church?

A Well, they would certainly be able --
certainly be permitted to do that.

Q U~ hmm .

A The church would not tell them what tpey
should do, only what they may do. If that is
their wish, then that would certainly be
permissible.

Q But does the Catholic church require,

require gomeone to have all medical treatments and

procedures to keep them alive?

A No. 1In fact, Pope Pius said that in
1953. It was a direct gquote. He said that kind
of suffering may be admirable, but certeinly not
required.

Q In fact, even if a patient is not
vegetative, does the Catholie church reguire alil
medical treatments to keep the patient alive?

A No.

Q There were alsc statements in the
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deposition alse to the.effect -- and these are

stcatements by the mother and the brother and

sister -- that if they were in that permanent

unconsciocus statement with nc hope of recovery and
had gangrene and their limbs had tc be amputated
that they would chocse that rather than to die.
Do you recall reading that?

A . Yes.

Q Does the Cathelic church regquire any

such action --

A NO.

Q -~ by a person like that?

A No.

Q In all your years of pastoral clinical

counseling, Father Murphy, have you ever come
across such extreme opinions?

A With all due respect, no.

o} Have you, from your pastoral clinical
experience, have you come across any dynamic which
would explain such a viewpoint?

a I think grief is a large part of it.

And I think there is a healthy versus unhealthy
;rieving process. I think everybody goes through

it in a different way and at a different time

speed. There is no set time frame, I think, for

1585
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grief.

I was just reminiscing yesterday about
my own grief for my mother. I concluded it just
two weeks age. When I was ordained, I bought
myself this ring, or a copy of the original, which
is envisioned as a commitment to Christ. Kind of
like my wedding ring for the church.

When my mother died a year-and~a-half
ago, I put it on her finger in the casket and wore
her anniversary ring from my father. About two
weeks ago, it was time to let ge. I got this copy
and put her ring away. I think that is an example
of the grieving process.

I knew of a little old lady in Sarasota,
after 60 or 70 years of marriage, every night- she
set a place at the table for her deceased huskand,
and eventually stopped about a year later. I
think that is a healthy kind of grieving. But the
other side is net being able to Jet go at all. 1
think that is very problematic.

Q In the Catholic faith, is death
something that a practicing Catholic need fear?

A No. No. 1In fact, that is a fundamental
part of the Catholic faith. We call ourselves a,

pilgrim people. Life here on earth is really seen
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as a temporary stay. Catholics believe that our
destiny is Heaven. Therefore, you can’'t do
everything to prevent yourself from getting
there.

What is so hard to deal with in
educating Catholics in theseé issues is that death
iz a part of life. It is a part of life. 1It's
part of the process. No, Catholics should not
fear death.

Q There was a statement in Mrs.
Schindler's deposition that, in addition to
wanting every type of medical treatment to
presérve herself in a permanent unconscious state,
should hypothetically she be in that state, that
she would, if medical treatment impoverished her
family, that she would still want that treatmgnt.

Is there any recognition in the Catholic
faith in this area about the cost of treatment?
Is the cost of treatment ever a factor?

A That's one of the criteria in deciding
whether it's proportionate or dispreportionate.
Excessive or ordinary. What you would hope is
that somebody is helping the patient work through
those issues. That, you know, maybe you need to

rethink that. You know, that again, the church

£
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would not tell them what to éo; but you know, a
good bicethical consult or caring pastor I think
would help somebody like that say, you know, maybe
we need to take another look at this. You know,
talk a little bit more.

Q So hypothetically, if a patient had a
choice whether to receive a treatment or not, and
the treatment let's say, let's say that offered no
hope of recovery and the patient decided not to
have it becaﬁse they didn’'t want to place a "
financial burden on their family, would such a
decision by the patient be consistent with
Catholic teachings?

A Absolutely.

Q Now in the deposition of Theresa's
siblings, do you recall there was discussion of
God's will?

A Um-hmm,

Q I believe there were a number of
statements. Well, Terri ought to remain alive
because -- she shculd be treated -- she should
have all type of medical treatment tc keep her
alive because it's God's will. If it was God's
will that ghe die, she would be dead with medical

treatment in place. Is such a position consistent
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with Catholic teaching?

A No. I don't think so. I'll tell you
why. When I mentioned the two-edged sword, God's
will could have been easily done fifty years ago.
I think this is a case where the wonderful
technology, rather than being an act of health and
regovery, h;s become the obstacle for nature
taking its course. I think it's a good example.

You know, there's alsc the case of my
father. My father, I found him crving in his bed
one day. He wasg dying of cancer and it was hard
to tell which was worse, getting up and going for
chemo or the cancer. He wanted to know if it
would be a sin if he stopped going to chemo. I
said of course not. He did stop and he died
peacefully thereafter.

I said there is another example of. where
chemo does wonderful things for people, or it can,
but what is the good that you hope to achieve?
For my father, it was only prolonging the
inevitable. He was not going to get better. So
in that case, the chemotherapy which was meant to
be the agent of health, became the obstacle.

Q Father Murphy, 1'd like to read you a

portion from Mary Schindler's deposition of August
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12, 1899. This is Page 39, Line 1§.

Quésticn. Well, in your mind, does
there come a point in time when the experience of
discomfort or pain on the part of the patient
becomes a facter in deciding whether to remove
life suppeorc?

Answer. -No.

Under Catholic, under the teachings of
the Cathclic church, is the pain or discomfort- of
the patient, that the patient might feel, is thaﬁ
a valid factor to be considered --

A Yeg.
Q -- in determining whether care is

ordinary or extraordinary?

A Yes.
Q How does that become a factor?
A As you know, Cathclics have an

understanding of suffering as being redemptive.
You know, Mother Theresa of Calcutta always sai&
that. Certainly suffering haql"a higher redemptive
valuk, but certainly you are not bound to take all
the suffering that comes your way. That is --
that was my father's case. My father basically
arrived at the notion that encugh is encugh. All

we are doing is prolonging the inevitable.
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Q Father Murphy. there was a section in
the depositions of Mr. and Mrs. Schindier read in
court already. You may remember them. Mr. and
Mrs. Schindler were basically asked, just
hypothetically, assume these were Terri's wishes.
That she did not want to be kept alive -
artificially and that she did not want to be kept
alive if she were a burden to cthers. Would that
change your position in this case?

They both answered no.

My guestion is, is disregarding the
intent of the patient consistent at all with
Catholic teachings?

A No. It is the perception of the pétient
that determines the morality of the acricen. Not
the family, not the doctor, but the perception of
the patient.

Q In Terri's sister's depogition, she
made the statement that taking away life support
is murder. 1Is that the position of the Catholic
church?

A Absolutely not. My farher's case again.

There are still people telling me that my fathe;

killed himself. Absolutely not true. Absolutely

inconsistent with church teaching. All they do is
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allow nature to take its course.

Q ! believe the sister alsc made the
statement in her deposition that a patient may
have medical treatment, even if i14{'s against his
or her will, if it can keep the patient alive.

A Absolutely not.

Q2 Do you recali in the deposition of
Theresa's brother his testimony that he believes
his parents or his parents believe, Mr. and Mrs.
Schindler, that Terri is aware of their presence,
and he testified that Terri's continued life is a
joy to him? A joy to him and his family to keep
Terri alive in this condition?

He was even asked -- he was even asked
if Terri needed -- if Terri needed a respirator to
keep her alive, would it still give you joy to
have her alive on & respirator? And he said yes.

He was asked if her limb had to be
amputated, would it give you joy to have her alive
in this condition? And he said yes.

My ¢question is, Father, what are the
teachings of the Catholic church regarding keeping
a loved one alive for your own personal pleasure
or benefit?

A I think that is contrary to the gospel.

@
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We all take pleasure in relationships with people,
family. People who get married. I think, you
know, keeping someone around strictly for your own
pleééure strikes me as very anti-gospal. Sounds
more like using somecne than loving someoné.

MR. FELOS: I have no other gquestions.
Thank you, father.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. CAMPRBELL:
Q Good afternoocn. My name is Pam

Campbell. I represent Mr. and Mrs. Schindler.

Have you had the opportunity to meet Mr. and Mrs.

Schindler?

A No. I regret that. I wish I were their
pastor.

Q Have you had the opportunity Lo meet

Theresa Schiave in this case?

A No.
Q When you say you reviewed the
depositions of the family, who were -- whose

depogitions were you specifically referring to?
A I remember Mr. and Mrs. Schindler. I
remember a woman named Carr. And a brother.
Q The woman named Cary, Suzanne Carr, tﬁg

sister?
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A Yes.
Q Did you review any medical records of
Theresa Schiavo?

A I read a summary of the physician who

went and reviewed the case.

Q Do you recall the name of the physician?
A Karp.
Q Dr. Karp? K-a-r-p?
- A As I recall, that is him.
Q It was about three pages long?
A Yes.
Q How did you get peracnally involved in

end of life isgsues?

A That's a long story. 1 discovered early
on in the priestheood, for me it was kind of a
loveless marriage until I started‘visiting
hospitals and taking care of the sick and dying.
For me that resconated deeply. I was very, very
sick as a child. BAlmost died as a child. 8o I.
felt a natural inclination -- empathy, not
inclination -- for pecple in those circumstances.

So that really set the tone for my

priesthood. And more and more in recent years, my
interest has been fueled by what I see are very

dark horizons in health care and the necessity to

Y

204




14
15
i6
17
18
ig
20
21
22
23
24

25

help families get through.

Q Can you be more specific in what you
mean, dark horizons?

A ves. I think that Catholics
particularly make no distinction between allowing
yourself to die from an illness and actively
killing yourself. That is why there are people to
this day that think my father killed himself by
removing chemotherapy. I think that is a
rremendous factor.

And I think when assisted suicide passes
in the State of Florida, as I believe it will,
that they will not have to market it because the
people I know, and I rhink with due respect, the
reascn I found this such an urusual situation is
that virtually everyone I know is terrified of a
case like this. That is why I believe they Qould
line up to take a pill or shot and go toO sleep.

My mother's death is a perfect example.
She was a good Catheolic. 1 think if she had a
chance to review her last week on earth, I'm not
so sure if she would have taken a pill and wanted
to go to sleep. That is what I mean by dark
horizons that fuel my attencion.

I have stepped up my writing, works,

%
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publishing, with the medical association to try to
educate clearly what is morally necessary.

Q Do you support, perscnally, physician
assisted suicide?

A Absolutely not.

Q Do you think that the church's teachings
would be in support of physician assisted suicide?

A Absclutely not.

Q What would be the church's position on
euthanasia?

A Absolutely not.

Q »  SBuicide?

A absolutely not, except that what the

church would recognize is that a person who
commits suicide is very likely in 2 diminished
capacity, SO in terms of judging the morality of
their action, they would not be held morally
accountable. In crder to sin, you have to clearly
want to do it and have the competence to be able
Lo sin. )

Q and the church, they have a position
against abortion?

A Definitely.

Q You stated earlier that many Catholics

are confused as to what the church's position
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would be?

A Yes,

Q Is it understandable to you why that
would occur when the church's position on
euthanasia, suicide, and abortion is such a pro
1ife stance? Do you understand my gquestion?

A Um, that iz a good guestion. Yeah. 1'd
say sc, but I would think that the average,
elderly Catholic is used to a Catholicism that
tells them exactly what to do. I'd say you are
probably right. There is merit in vour question.

Q Would it be your understanding that
probably, in general, practicing Catholics would
pelieve that it would be the church’s positicn to
suppert artificial feeding, hydration, nutri;ion?
That the church's position would be to support
that? ‘

A Probably. Just like my family, fathef,

asked me if steopping cheme would be a sin.

Q vour father was Catholic?

A Irish. .

Q Have you ever had your depesition taken?
A No, ma'am.

o In reading through the deposition of Mr.

and Mrs. Schindler and Terri‘'s siblings, could vou
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get the sense of the room in the deposition when
you were reading through those?

A A lirttle bit.

Q Could you get the feelsof the emctions
past the black and white page?

A A littlie bhit.

Q Could you sense that perhaps the people
that were being deposed felt they were being -
backed into a corner?

A I don't think so. That was not my
sense. Do you want to know how I felt?

Q Yes.

A The sense that I felt more was great
empathy. Not just because I'm a good pastor, but
¥ watched my parents bury two of their own
children. I know it destroyed them. My mother
never got over it. My father did. - They were an
interesting case in grief. ‘

So my heart, without knowing them, my

heart goes out to the Schindlers because this must

be killing them. But, you know, it was awful for
me to be a son and yet very good for me to be a
son to my parents to help them work through it.
don't think most people have that. They have to

=

rely on what they hear on radio or see on

I
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television or somethirlg.

o] In weighing the benefits and burdens of
a position in making a determination with a
family, you talked about cost --

A Yes.

Q -- being a factor. Are you aware of the
financial circumstances of this particular case?

A Not really. That there is money
involved. I don't recall dollars. Amounts.

Q Is it your impression that cost is a
factor here? The cost of her care being a benefit
or burden?

A Yes. But I think that would be my own
surmise. Knowing what health care cost in
general, years and years of health care must be
agtronomical, I would think. That is just a hunch
on my part.

Q You have not reviewed her medical
records to have assessments of her medical costs?

A No,

Q To your knowledge, has Theresa Schiavo's
condition been evaluated by any biocethics
committee?

A No. Not to my knowledge. That is, T

think, probably a flaw in this case. It would
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have been great if they had.

0 Generally, had she been at 5t.
Anthony's, for example, and this case was
presented through, would that have gone through
the Bioethics Committee?

A You see, someone will have to call for
it. Whether it is a family member -- 1 assume,
given the dynamics of the situation, I assumerne
of them or the physician would have said could we
gsit down. Yes. It would have héppened.

Q Are you aware whether or not there is a

bigethics committee at Palm Garden in Largo?

A I have no idea. I don't even know where
thar is.
Q Generally, when this comes up in a

hospital setting, in a Catholic hospital setting,
does it not go through a committee?

A Yes. You would not have seen that five
or ten years ago. Nowadays, I assume it's almost
automatic.

Q So a number of people would be reviewing
the benefits and burdens of Theresa Schiavo's
personal case?

A Yes. B

Q Have you discussed this case with other
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Catholic colleagues Sf yours in the medicél ethics
area?

A Yes. Two of them that we work together
on doing consultations in the diccese. I
discussed in general the situation with the two of
them.

e} But you have never talked to the
Schindlers to receive their input?

A No.

2 In a committee setting, when a true
committee would have been formed ro review Theresa
Schiave's circumstances, would the husband's
feelings have been taken into consideration?

A Everyone's feelings would have to be
taken into consideration. That is one of the
goals of the ethics connotation is to Lry to get
everybody moving at the same pace.

g So in this case, have you had the
benefit of any of the other familyrs --

A No.

Q -- thoughts on thisg?

A No. If I recall, Mr. Felos told me that
I was contacted by somebody in the family and I'm
sure I told him wha;ever -~ because I get cél}s

all the time -- and I'm sure I teld him whar I
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tell everybody. You have my home phone number.

Private number.\€Cell number. I would be happy to
git down with you and the family. <Call.

Q Do you recall maybe being contacted by a
Richard Pearse of the guardian ad litem?

A I think that is the name.

Q Probably it was Mr. Pearse and not one

of the Schindlers?

A Okay. I'm sorry. &

Q Would that be your recollection?

. I recognize the name Pearse.

o He was the guardian ad litem appointed

in this case.

A Ckay.

Q Are you familiar with the ethical and
religious directives of Catholic Health Care
Services published by the National Conference of
Catholic Biships?

A Yes, ma'amnm.

Q What w?uld be your general thoughté
concerning that §ub1ication?

A I think it's the teaching of the church.
What the bishops teach. '

Q X Are you familiar with the specific

detectives under issues for care and issues and
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care for the dying?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Would you specifically be familiar with
number 58?

A No.

Q If I read that te you, would you tell
me -- I wouEd like to read that for you and tell

me if that is within your same mind getr . The
directive 58 says there should he a pPregumption --
MR. FELOS: Excuse me. If she is going
to be reading from a source like that, does
counsel have additional copies so that I can
follow it and perhaps Father Murphy as well?

MS. CAMPBELL: 1 do not have additional
copies. I would be glad to let Mr. Felos loock
over my shoulder.

THE COURT: Very well.

Q {By Ms. Campbell} Number 58 says there
should be a presumption in favor of providing .
nutriticn and hydration to all batients, including
patients who require medically assisted nutritien
and hydration, as long as this is of sufficient
benefit that ocutweighs the burdens involved to the
patient. ©Does that sound familiar?

A Yes.
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Q How would you square that directive with
your earlier testimony concerning Theresa Schiavo?

A As I think I said earlier, the church
will always take the high road. They will always
uphold the ideal. They will always resist
immediate action. I think they always want to
2low down, take advantage of every possible
cpportunity, to make sure that the outcome is not
promising.

Sc even Cardinal Bernadine, who taught
us so much about how to die well, thar was one of
his most forceful arguments ig that artificial
hydration and nutrition is not mandatory in every
single case. You have to go back and evaluate the
proportion. Where are you going? What do you
hope to achieve against what is it going to take
to get there? What is the outcome that you are
locking for? )

Q Have you ever worked with one of the
patients in many of the hundreds of families rhat
yYou worked witﬁ that héve received, or believed
they have received, a miracle from God?

A Sure. My father.

Q Would they, would that involve

continuation of life?
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A Um-~hmm. Yes,

Q In this case, if you witnessed Theresa
Schiavo with her mother and there was an
outpouring of love between the two of them, would
that be something that would be a factor in your
consideration of whether or not it would be
acceptable to withdraw s feeding tube?

MR. FELOS: I object to that question
for lack of foundation. I heard no testimony -- 1
deposed Mrs. Schindler. She has taken no
depositions. I don't recall any testimony of an
outpouring of love from Theresa. I would obiect
on lack of foundation to that question.

THE COURT: I certainly have heard
enough.

MS. CAMPBELL: I'l]l rephrase.

Q (By Ms. Campbell) If you witnessed
Mrs. Schindler, Theresa's mother, with Theresé and
watched her laughter, her smiling, on a, say a
regular basis whenever Mrs. Schindler would visit,
ig that something you would consider?

A T would consider it.

Q How would that -- would that change your
opinion in this case?

A It could.
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Q Could youtelaberate on how you think
that could? .

A Well, what I weuld look for is the
lesson that one of the chiefg of intensive care at
All Children's told me. He said, Father, you
divide up the brain. There ig a part of the brain
that is who the person was. Then there ig a part
of the brain what the person was. Who the person
was is gone and they are not coming back. But
what the person was is gtill functioning. )

So he described for me local stimuli.
Things thag appear t£o be cognizance, appear to be
awareness. Again, I'm not a physician. 1t would

want to talk to the pPhysician about thar. So I

would give you a cautious yes, I could consider

it,

Q But you weuld consider the physiqian's
input?

A Well, that is his exXpertise. That ;s
not mine.

Q Do you think thar would do anything with
any teaching of perhaps God's will and for a
miracle?

A I don't mean this ag flip as it sounds.

If God is going to work a miracle, he does not
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need machinery or technology. I think he will
just do it. 8¢ I have never been persuaded by the
argument that we have to keep all the machinery
going so God can work his miracle. I don't
believe God needs that.

Q Do you think there is a timetable that
God expects you to consider one way or the other?

A Ne. I mean in terms of, I don't think
it's six months or a year or whatever. But I
think that when it hecomes a long, long time, I
think a good pastor would have to sit down with
the principals involved and say maybe, maybe it's
time to let go.

Q This would be a pastor tﬁat probably
worked with the family?

A Yes. BSure.

Q It would he a pastor maybe that had

witnessed any type ¢f relationship between the

incapacitated, or ward, and the pecple that are
asking for the feeding tube to be maintained?
A Sure. .
MS. CAMPBELL: I have no further
guestions.
THE COURT: Redirect?

MR. FELOS: Yes, Your Honor.
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:

Q In the portion of the ethical and
religious directives which was read to you by
opposing counsel, Father, it does state thai
providing nutrition and hydration is conditioned
by the phrase *as long as this is of sufficient
benefit to outweigh the burdens to the patieft. "
That gets back to the factors we talked about on
direct examination; doesn't it?

A Yes.

Q Those factors are locked at in the mind
of the patient?

A Yes.

Q Let's agsume again that Theresa Schiavo
expressed an intent not to he kept alive
artificially. Does the fact that her mothef
derives joy from being with Theresa, does thar
negate Theresa's intent?

A Ko.

Q Let's even assume for purposes of this
question that Theresa does smile and laugh and her
mother derives joy from that. Does that negate
Theresa's intent?

A No.
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. As to Theresa and whether this continued
life maintained artificially is burdensome, that
was for Theresa to decide, not her mother; isn't
that correct?

A Yes.

Q You were asked the guestion whether you

talked to Mr. and Mrs. Schindler?

A Yes

Q Did you talk to Mr. Schiavo?

A No.

Q There was -- you mentiﬁned Mcther

Theresa, by the way. Did you ever work in any of
Mother Theresa's centers?

A Yes. I tried te volunteer as much as I
could up at the Washington -- in Washington, DC.
It's an AIDS Hospice right near Catholic U. I go
there a couple times a year.

Q What type of work do you do there?

A Just loving the patients. Watching ﬁhe
nuns. They have taught me so much about the c;re
of the dying. You don't see any machinery there.
All you see is the nuns bathing these old people.
Just loving them.

Q Have you ever participated in any

patient care yourself?
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A Sure. I never forget them. While
talking about them, I was in DC last week. A
black man dying of AIDS named Willie, I held
Willie in my arms after I baptized him. One of
the little nuns tock a spoonful of Ensure. Tock a
piece of the communion wafer and poured it down
Willie's throat. He died shortly thereafter. I
can still feel Willie's skin and bones. To me,
that is what compassion is all about. Suffering
with people.

Q Sc your interest and knowledge in this
area is not just purely theoretical?

A No. Certainly much more I'd say because
I have been there. )

e Q There was some discussion about

‘submitting this case to a biocethics committee.

>

A Um-hmm.
0 Isn't it correct that such a bioethics

committee, or review process, is designed to bring

a consensus among the participants in decision -

making?
A Well --
Q If you have, let's say a family dispute

as to care, that the purpose of the review process

is to try to reach a common ground?
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A in terms of heart and mind, yes. But

for example, as in the case of my mother, it took
two or three days to work my two brothers. I was
the surrogate. 3So itlwas my fight to make the
decision.

'So if you mean consensus to validate my
decisien, no, but what you hope to do is get
everybody emotionally on the road to recovery.

Q Were you aware that Mr. Schiavo proposed

to the Schindlers to participate in hospice

counseling?
A No.
Q ¥You noted that the ethics committee --

in many cases like this in the hospital it may be
submitted to an ethics committee. Do you know
whether that is the case in nursing homes?

A Yes.

Q When you say a case like this, do you
mean a case that involves a family dispute?

A Yes.

Q Isn't it true that feeding tubes are
routinely removed from unconscious patients in
hosptals and nursing home gettings?

A Definitely hespitals., I'm not certain

about every nursing home. Definitely hospitals.
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Q Father, there was, you mentioned that
gomething could be learned by how the patients are
treated at Mother Theresa's Hospice. How are
elderly nuns and priests treated in end of life
situations like this?

A I often tell my own colleagues that we'd
learn a lot if we went to these old nunneries and
watched the way they take care of the old nuns.
It's ice chipg. Maybe a spoonful of socup or
Gatorade, if rhey can tolerate it. Face clothes
on the forehead. Holding their hand. That I
think is dying with dignity.

The machinery and everything, that is
what was heartbreaking about my mother's situation
because there was not enocugh chance tc give her
the love like I knew she deserved. I could never
get in the room.

¢ There was some talk about assisted
suicide and I just want to clear this up. How do
you feel about physician assisted suicide?

A -Absoluteiy against it. It is morally
wrong to do anything to take your life.

Q Correct me if I'm wrong. Was the gisE
of your testimony that you believe that pecple

might be given to physician assisted suicide

222




10
11
1z

13

14 .

15
i6
17
is
i9
20
21
22
23
24

25

because they will receive medical treatment
against their will?

A Absalutely.

Q That is why you are teaching people to
let them know that under the Catholic faith you
don't have to be treated at all costs?

A Abgolutely.

Q And the consequence of pecple believing,
that may force them, lead them, to take their own
iife?

A Absolutely.

Q That is the dark horizen in the medical
gsystem that you are afraid of today?

A In my view, yes.

MR. FELOS: I have nc other questions.

THE COURT: Recross?

MS. CAMPRELL: Cne, please.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. CAMPBELL:

(o} Would you consider the credibility of
rhe statement -- for example, in this case you
heard there was a statement made as to the wishes
of Theresa Schiavo. Would you consider the N
credibility of circumstances around that statement

in considering her wishes?
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A Credibility? 1If you mean in terms of
did someone want to DC everything in 36 hours or
72 hours, I certainly would say there is something
wrong here. In view of the length of time here,
yes, I would consider it. I would be concerned
about factors, factors surrounding that.

MS. CAMPRBRELL: Thank you.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. FELOS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Is Father Murphy under
subpoena?

MR, FELOS: No. He is not.

THE COURT: Father, thank you very
much. You are free to go. All right, Mr. Felos.
Call your next witness.

¥R. FELOS: Joan Schiavo.

THE BAILIFF: Stop here. Raise your
right hand. Face the judge for me.

(THEREUPON, THE WITNESS WAS SWORN ON OATH BY
THE COURT.}
THE COURT: Thank you. Have a seat.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:
State your full name, please.

Joan Schiavo.
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Where do you live?

Q

A rhiladelphia, Pennsylvania.

7Q Are you married?

A Yes. I am.

Q To whom are you married, Mrs. Schiavo?

A William F. Schiave, Jr.

Q Are you related to Michael and Terr:i
Schiave?

A Yes. I am.

Q How are you related to them?

)% I'm married to his oldest brother,
Bill.

Q When were you and Bill married?

A November 11, 1978.

¢} Tell us, please, your educational
background. ‘

A I have twelve years cof a Catholicj
education. Two-and-a-half years of college,‘but

digd not finish ceollege.

Q
A
Q

A

Q

Do you have a family?

Yes. 1 do.

How many children?

Three. Two boys and a girl.

Tell us a iittle bit about your

employment background. Where are you presently

]
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employed?

A I worked at a place célled Bets
Laboratory for eleven years. I stopped working
when I had children. Opened up --

G What did you do at Bets Laboratery?

A I was a secretary. My friend and I
opened up our own cleaning business after my
children were a little bit older. I presently
stopped working, doing that, and I start a new job

next week as a medical secretary.

o} Do you know Theresa Schiavo?

A Yes. I do.

Q when did you first meet Terri?

A 1 met Terri at a party that my husband

and I had years ago. She came to it. It was the

first time she met us.

Q Was she married to Mike at that time?
A No. They were dating.
] I notice you had a gmile on your face

when you said you met her at that party. Was
there anything that happened at that party that
was particularly -- 7

A Terri and Michael had come in. Michael
had introduced us to her. She was sitting beside

me at the time. My husband was cut front at the
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time. Everybody was%drinking. And he was
somewhat loaded at the time.

He came walking in the house goofing
around. He told everybody -+« therg was a song or
something on the radio. He came in dancing. He
yelled out, "Everybody droé yvour pants,” and Terri
cracked up laughing. I knew then that we were
going to get along just fine.

Q In the time period that Terri and Mike
lived in Philadeliphia, which was I think about the
beginning of 86 -- let me backtrack. Do you
recall when it was you first met Terri?

A Well, I was married at the time. I
don't recall the year. I had already had B. J.
t84. Maybe '82, '8l. I don't recall the definite
year.

Q In the years that yecu lived in
Philadelphia after you met Terri, how often would
you see Terri?

A In the beginning, I did not see her fhat
often because I didn‘'t know her that well. I
would run into her every once in a while at my
inlaw's house. Every onée in a while her and
Michael would come down con the weekend to see us,

and at that time, my son, B. J.
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Q As you got to know Terri a bit more, did
you start to see gach other more often?

A Yes. Saw her a lot on the weekends.
Talked to her a lot on the phone and saw her
during the week.

Q Did a friendship develop between the two

of you?
A Yes.
Q How would you describe your friendship

with Terri?

A Terri was my best friend and like a
sister that I never had.

Q When that friendship developed, how
cften would you speak to each other on the phone?

A On the phone I would say maybe, out of
seven days, we talked to each other fcour or five.

Q Um-hmm. How often during the week wguld
you see her when you were best friends?

A Mostly on the weekends. Maybe two
times. 7Two or three times out of the week she had
either come to see us or I'd go down to her
family's house.

Q Between talking to her on the phone and

%
seeing her, would it be fair to séy you had

contact with her almost everyday?
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A Yes.

Q How would you describe Terri's
personality?

A She was great. She was a lot of fun.

Very caring. Was always there if you needed her.
Always there to listen if you had a problem. She
would do anything for you. She was a good person.

Q Did you ever -- would "shy" be a word
you would use to describe Terri?

A No .

Q Would "reserved® be a word that you
would use to describe Terri?

A No. Real outgoing. Always amiling.

Q Did she ever seem to be afraid to speak
up or tell her mind?

A No.

Q What type of things, when you became
pest friends, what type of things aid you talk
about?

A Did we talk about?

0 Um-~hmm.

A Kidg. Shopping. My husband. Michael.
Just' general conversation.

Q Did you ever confide in each other?

A All the time.

*
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Q What typeaof things -~ did you and Terri
ever go out together?

A Yes.-

Q What type of things did you do?

B Went to the movies. We went to the mall

a lot. Sometimes we went to the movies. We went

clubbing.
Q You mean nightclubbing?
A Yes.
Q Did you take your husbands?
A Sometimea. Not all the time.
Q Now I think you mentioned before that

somebimes Terri would come over to your house?

A Yes.

Q Dié you ever go over to Terri's house?
A Um- hnm .

Q Before Terri was married, do you know

whether she lived with her parents?

A She lived with her parents. Yes.

Q Did you ever go over to Terri's parent's
house?

A Yeah. I would just walk in.

] Did you and Terri ever have a

conversation about the subject of artificial life

support?
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" that first came up for your girlfriend until the

231
A Yes.

Tell me, please, how that came about.
‘A A friend of mine and her husband had a

baby. It was their first baby, and the baby was
born sickly. They had to put the baby on a
ventilator or machines to keep the baby alive.
And they had to make that decision if they wanted
to take the baby off the tubes and all. +

So during that time, I had talked to
Terri about it a lot because 1 was upset for my
girlfriend. They finally made that decision to
take the baby off the machine.

Q How long of a time was that from when

situation resolved for your girlfriend?

A Well, they didn't know anything was
wrong with the baby until after the baby was
born.

Q Um-hmm.

A I would say only within a few months.
Maybe not even.

0 i guess my guesticn was, was this an
ongoing subject that you talked to Terri about?
In other words, did it take a while for the =«

parents of the baby to make that decision and
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impiemeﬁt it?

A It tock -- I guess for the parents it
took a little bit of time to make that decision
because it was their first borm baby, and nchody
wants to see that happen. But they knew, for the
baby's sake, there was not anything they could
ever really do for the baby. I would say within,
maybe within a month's time.

Q How many times would you say you talked
to Terri?

A About that?

Q About that situation with your
girlfriend and her baby.

A When it first happened, it seemed like
we talked about it a lot. When I talked to her.

Q What did Terri have to say in response
to your telling her about that?

A She had said that if her and Michael
were ever put in that kind of a situation that
that would be a situation that she really would
not want to have to deal with, but she knows that
her and Michael would make the best decisicn and
that would be to do the same thing my girlfriend
and her husband did because she would not want to

put the baby through anything like that.
L
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Q What was the decision the parents made?

A They took all the tubing and everything
off the baby.

Q Did you ever have occasion to discuss
with Terri, when talking about the girfriend, what
your personal preferences may be regarding
artificial life support?

A Yeah. We had watched a movie cne time
on television. It was about somebody. I don't
remember. I don't remember the movie. It was
about & guy who had an accident and he wasg in a
comma. There was no help for him. We had atated
that if that ever happened to one of us, in our
lifetime, we would not want to dgo through that.
That we would want it stated in our will we would
want the tubes and everything taken cut.

Q When you say "we" had stated it --

A Myzelf and her.

Q As best you can recall, what did Térri
say in response to seeing that movie?

A She did not like the movie. Just the

‘whole agpect of family and friends having to come

and see their son or friend like that, she thought
it was hcrrible.

Q Do you know what type cf life support

2

%
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the perscon in the movie was on? Do you recall?

A No. I don't know all the different -- I
just know there was some tubes in him. Like what
you call the breathing machine. The feeding
machine. I don't know all the different names of
the machines.

Q About how well do you recall these
conversations with Terri?

A Well --

o’ I mean, are you sure Terri did notksay
something like, "Gee, if that is me, don't pull
the plug. T want tc stay alive like that."?

A No. WNco. I know she didn't say that.

Q Did Terri say anvthing about being
afraid to die and not wanting to let go?

A Hm-umm. You mean if she was on thdse
machines ¢r in general?

[»] Talking about those machines.

A No. She did not want to live like that.
She didn't want to go through that. Have people
come and see her like that. Do that to her family
and friends.

Q That is what she said?

A Um-hmm.

Q Mrs. Schiave, when did you first relay
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this information to either me or Mr. Schiavo? Do
you know when you first told somebody about this

information about Terri?

A It was you.

Q bo you recall when that was in?

A September. The fall.

o Did you ever teil Mike about it?

A No.

Q Regarding the conversations stimulated

by the friend's baby, how many times would you say
Terri expressed her agreement with the parent 's
decision not to continue life support?

A She agreed with it.

Q My question is yon said you talked to
Terri about that a number of times?

A Um-~hmm, A

Q Did she express her opinion about it
once, or did she express her opinion about. it more
than once?

A More. Several times. I'd say if I
talked to Terri maybe 14 days about it, she

probably expressed her opinion 12 out of thegpd.

Q S50 this was not an isolated comment an
her part?
F- No.
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o] When Terri and Mike moved to Florida,
did that affect your friendship with her?

A It did not. I talked to her every day.

Q How -~

A I didn't see her, but talked to her all
the time.

Q As time went on, after she moved down
here, did you get a chance to visit her?

A No. I did not have the finances to'gét
down to visit. I wanted tec. Just did not have
the finances.

Q Afrer she was here for a while, about
how often would you talk to her?

A Maybe, cut of seven days a Qeek, maybe
five.

Y, How long would the two of yvou talk on
the phone?

A Well, when she called me; we talked a
little bit longer. When I called her, it was
maybe a little bit less.

Q In your testimony, you made some
reference to making wills. What was that again?
You mentioned something about you and Terri
talking about making willsg?

A We had said during the time with t&gt
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movie, at one time we had said that i1f, that we

had always wanted atated, my husband and myself,
make up a will. She would want it stated, and
myself, I would, if it came down to something like
that, we would not want any kind of life support.

MR. FELOS: Okay. Thank you.

THE CQURT: Cross-examination?

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY M5. CAMPBELL:

Q Good afternoon, Mrs. Schiavo. My name
is Pam Campbell. I'm the attorney representing
Mr. and Mrs. Schindier in this case.

A Hi.

Q Can you tell me approximately when was
the circumstances with your friend's baby? What
year?

A What year? Maybe '85 or '86.

Q It was beforeror after Terri and Mike
were married?

A After.

Q. After?

A Um-hmm.

Q Were her comments in respcnse, in your
conversations pertaining to the issue with the

baby, were they mostly surrounding if she and
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Michael had a baby thaf this is what they would
want to do with the baby? -

A Could you rephrase?

Q Um-hmm. When you were having this
conversation with her about your friend's baby --

A Right,

Q -~ YOu are saying Terri made comments
about that. Were her comments based on what she,
what she would want to do if she and Michael's
child were in a hypothetical setting?

A You mean as far as she stating what her
and Michael would do in that situation?

o Right. Right. #With a baby.

A She teld me what her and Michael would
want to do if it was her and Michael in that
Situation.

Q S0 her comments were more for a child as
opposed to herself?

A At that time.

Q When was it that you were watching this
movie, approximately, from a time frame?

A It was after that happened with my
friend's baby. I don't know how many years or
months or days. But I would say within a two year

period maybe.

238




10
11
1z
i3
14
15
16
17
i8
18
290
21
22
23
24

25

Q Had they moved to Florida yet?
A No. b
Q So they were still living in the

Philadelphia area?

A Um-hmm.

Q Can you describe the scene in the movie
with thg man and the tubes?

A He was a younger man. I don't remember
the movie. If I'm not mistaken, it was a diving
accident into & pool. He passed away at the end
of the movie. I don't remember the movie. I -
really don't remember the movie.

Q Ckay. Do you remember what the man

locked like? Whether or not he was in a hespital

setting?

A In the movie he was in a hgspital
setting.

Q Do you recall where the tubes were

coming from?

A His mouth. He had some in his arm.

0 Was it the gréphic recitation of that
picture in the movie which stimulated the comments
from Terri?

A I think it was the whole situation of

the movie. I don't think that was, it was just
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that part. That part was very upgetting, but the
whole situaticn of the movie.

o} Was there a long period of time between
his accident and then his hospital stay and his
death in the movie?

A What is a movie? Everything is done
within a two hour period anyway, so -- he had the
accident. He was in the hospiﬁal. He passed
away. I'm trying to remember. Maybe months to a
year. 1 forget how long.

Q Do you remember when Terri and Mike

moved ro Florida?

A Yeah.
Q When was that?

A T don't remember the year. I remembered
it. I didn‘'t want them to go. ‘

Q Did vou talk to Terri -- you were
testifying about how frequently you talked to her.

rFive out of seven days?

A Um-hmm.

Q Was that right up to the time of the
accident?

A Um-hmm. I talked to her two days before

&

it happened.

Q Did she ever discuss with you problems
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that she and Mike were having?

F-\ No. I mean, no marriage is perfect.
Mine is not. It was nothing cut of the ordinary -

Q Did she discuss with you her desire to
become pregnant?

A She wanted children.

Q Do you know that she was going to a
doctor concerning fertility issues?

A I'm trying to remember. Yeah.

Q Do you recall how long of a period she
had been trying to get pregnant?

A ¥o. That I don't remember.

Q After she came, after she and Michael
moved to Florida, did you get to see Terri after
that?

a No. I had three children. My husband
nad a new job. The money was not there. But I
would have loved to have gone to seé her,

Q gince the accident which occurred to
Terri in February of 1930, did you see Terri
during that time frame?

A Hm-umm. I gquestioned my inlaws all the
rime about it. My brother-in-law. Everybody kept
me informed on what was going on.

Q0 Have you seen Terri recently?
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A No. But I intend to see her while I'm
here.

Q Do you know what type of life sustaining
measures are being taken for Terri?

A What do I understand the update of her
conditicn is? Is that what you mean?

Q Do you -- is it your understanding tﬁat
Terri is on a ventilator?

A Um -~

Q The thing that makes her chest go¢ up and
down like vou described in the movie?

A No. I don't know. I thought it was

just the feeding machine. Feeding tube.

Q Do you know what a feeding tube would
lock like?

A No.

Q So you have not seen Térri as to what

she looks like?

A Neo.

Q You don't know if she has, is connected
to tubes or anything like that?

A No.

Q When this first happened to Terri, weze
you aware of what type of life support she was

having then?
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A When it first happened?

Q Um-hmm.

A vYeah. Breathing machine. Feeding tube.
Q Did you tell Michael any of her

comment s before?

A Him - umm .

Q Did you relay any of the comments about
Terri's not wanting to live in a condition like
that to Michael during that time frame?

A Not at all. He was going through too
much at the time. I didn‘t mention it.

Q 8o during this nine year period, you

s£ill have never told him about 1£?

A No.
o Doesn't it seem odd that you would not
tell him?

A I think if he questioned me, I would
have told him. He never questioned me. . it never
came up in a conversation between him and I. If
he would have said something te me, I would have.

MS. CAMPBELL: I have no further
quéstions. Thank you.

THE COURT: Redirect?
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:

Q You were asked a qugstion about Terri
wanting to get pregnant and seeing a docter. Did
Terri ever mention anything te you about the
frequency of her periods or not getting periods?

A They were not real frequent.

Q Now the opposing attorney asked you a
question when did you have the conversations with
Terri about the girlfriend’'s baby.

A - Um-hmm

Q I believe you used the words "after
Terri ﬁad moved”. I want you to clarify that.
Did you mean after she moved from her parent's
home in Philadelphia or after she moved to Florida
with Mike?

A The situation with my girlfriend's baby

was when she lived here, not in Florida.

Q When she lived where?

A With Michael. -

Q In what city?

A Pennsylvania. Philadelphia.

Q Sc the conversations you had with Terri

about the girlfriend's baby was, I think you

mentioned, was in Philadelphia?
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A Um-hmm.

e} Do you know that Terri lived with her
parents in Philadelphia and then, when she
married, she moved and lived with Mike in
Philadelphia?

A Um-hmm,

Q The movie on television was that, that
occurred before or after the -- did you testify
that occurred before the conversations you had
about the baby? Let me ask it again. The
conversation you had with Terri about a TV show
and the diver not wanting be on life support, was
that before or after the situation came up with
your girlfriend?

A After.

MR. FELOS: No other gquestions,
Your Honor.
THE COURT: Any re-cross?
MS., CAMPBELL: No thank you.
THE COURT: You can stand down. I
agssume she's not under subpoena?
MR. FELCS: She is not.
THE COURT: Anything else this afternoon?
MR. FELOS: Fortunately, or

unfortunately, we have exhausted our witnesses,
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too, and should be concluding tomorrow morning.
So I want to mention that, so oppesing counsel
knows tc have her witnesses ready for the start of
her case.

THE COURT: Very well. Stand in recess
until 9:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.

{THEREUPON, COURT RECESSED AT 4:35 P.M. ON
1-24-00 AND THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD ON
1-25-00 AT 9:00 A.M.) i

THE COURT: Petitioner ready to proceed
in this case?

MR. FELOS: Yes.

THE COURT: Respondent ready to proceed?

MS. CAMPRBELL: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Call your next witness.

MR. FELOS: We call Dr. Vincent
Gambone .

{THEREUPON, THE WITNESS WAS SWORN ON OATH BY

THE COURT.)
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, FELOS:
Q State your full name, please.
A Victor Gambone.
Q Where do you live?
A Dunedin.

&
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247
How are you employed?

I'm a physician.

Are you a medical doctor?

I o B I o

Yes. A medical doctor licensed in the
State of Florida.

g - Can you tell us, please, your
educational background?

A Yes. A graduate of Penn State
University, where I did my undergraduaté work and
also my received my medical degree. I did my
internal medicine training at the University of
Scuth Florida in Tampa. I'm board certified in
internal medicine and I'm board certified in
geriatric medicine. I'm also board ce:tified in
medical direction and long-term care. I'm also
certified by the American Board of Quality
Assurance and Utilization Review.

Q When you use the term "board certified®,
can you briefly e#plain what that means?

A Yes. This ig one way of establishing
core knowledge and expertise in a particular
field, which is reccgnized nationally.

8] Again, you were board certified in
geriatric medicine?

A Yes.
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Q The last one you mentioned was?

A Quality Assurance and Utilization
Review.

Q For long-term care?

A No. In general for medical quality
assurance. V

Q Can you explain briefly what that is?

A Yes. It's, I received special training

in ways of assuring that quality exists in the
wa}k that is done in the medical profession. So I
might be called on to be on committees or to
review work of other physicians for quality.

Q Dr. CGambone, do you know Theresa

Schiavo?
A Yes. I do.
Q Are you her primary treating physician?
A Yes. I am.
Q How long have you been Theresa's priﬁary

treating physician?

A For almost two years.

Q Can you tell us a little bit about your
duties. As a primary treating physician, what do
you consider your duties to be regarding Theresa?

A My duties are to assure that she

receives proper medical care in the facility where

248




10
11
i2
13
14
15
is6
17
18
ig
20
21
2z
23
24

25

249
she resides.

0 How many times have you visited Theresga?

A I visit her at least every other monﬁh.
Occasionally more often than that. I would
estimate I have visited her probably ten times
during the past year. There have been other
physicians, or a physician who works with me, who
visits her periodically in my absence.

o] Now describe for us, please, the
procedure that you would underge, the procedure
you underwent on your initial examination of
Theresa.

A An initial examination, it was a
comprehensive examination and I review the prior
records. I took a current history from those who
would give me history. That is Michael, her
husband, and also the care-givers at the nursing
home. After reviewing the records, I performed a
physical examination and then made a report of
that examination.

Q In the course of your examination, did
you talk to Theresa? Did you agsk her gquestions?

A Yes. I tried to elicit some response
from her, either wverbally or visually. These are

-- were gsome 0f the tests that I performed.
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Q Cn each of ¥our visits after your
initial wvisit, did you try to elicit some response
from Theresa?

A Yes. Whenever I would greet any of my
patients, even though they may be comatose or
unconscious, I would always greet them with their
name.

Q In all your visits to Theresa, have you
ever noticed any response by Theresa which would

lead you to believe that she has cognition?

A No.

Q When is the last time you visited
Theresaz?

A The last time was, I believe it was a

Friday. Probably was the 7th of January.

Q How would you describe Theresa's
condition in medical terms?

A I would describe her condition as-a
vegetative state.

Q Dr. Gambone, do you know of any
treatment, modality, or thing that can be done for
Theresa which will improve her condition?

A No. I dcn’ti

Q Now let's talk a little bit about the

nursing home. Is there a nurse on duty that
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251
supervises the care of patients when the

physicians are not there?

A Yes. There are nurses con duty 24 hours
a day.

Q If there were any change in Theresa's
condition, such as Theresa said something or
Theresa responded in some way, what would be the
duty cf the nursing home regarding communicatién
o you?

A Any change in condition, and this would
be considered a significant change in condition,
should this occur, the nurse would immediately‘
report this teo the physician.

Q Has any nurse ever reported any such
change in condition to you?

A No, sir.

Q Please describe Theresa's physical
conditicn as opposed to her mental condition.

A Physically, I would describe her
condition as very good. Excellent.

< Poes she have any physical problems?

A The physical problems that she has are
relared to her neurologic condition.

Q What are those physical problems? &

A Contractures in which the stronger
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miscles of the body would react against the weaker
ones and so the flexor muscles -- =6 your hands
would contract. She has contractions. They have
worked with those contractions over the years,

Q We have heard some testimony about a
dropped foot. Does she have a dropped foot?

A Yes. . Because of the neurologic damage,
that is another related condition.

Q When muscles become unused and
contractured over a periocd of time, is there any
permanent damage to the muscular system? In other
words, if Theresa, hypothetically Theresa awcke
and regained consciousness, would she havé the use
of those limbs?

A Over this pericd of time it would be
unlikely because without activity, electrical
activity of the muscles, death of thegmuscles
occur. Death of the end plate which is, and T'11
Lry not to be too technical here, but the nerve
miscle inner cﬁnnection. There is death of that
area or destruction of that area without use,
without the electrical chemical activity that is
necessgary to maintain it.

o So is it fair to say that, if

hypothetically Theresa Schiavo regained e
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consciousness, she would be a guadraplegic?

A, I would say that she certainly would
have serious impairments, and I could not tell yeu
exactly what they are. But quadroplegia is a
medical term and you know, it may appear the same
to you -- to a lay peréon. Yes. The weakness

that she would have would be similar to

quadraplegia. ]
Q Um-hmm. Is a patient in a vegetative --
is a patient who has lost the swallow reflex -- or

let me backtrack. Does Theresa Schiavo have a
swallow reflex? Can she take in fluids?

A No. She cannot.

Q Does a patient who has lost the swallow
reflex, are thgy subject to any greater incidents
cf any maladiea such as infections or any '
particular problems?

A Yes. Without the swallow reflex, just
the normal secréti&ns in your mouth, your saliva
could go into the lung. Because normally we just,
when fluid collects in the back of her throat

throughout the day, we just swallow and put it

=

into the stomach. Without that reflex, it's more
likely for that fluid te go into the lungs.

¢ What happens when that oc¢curs in such a
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patient? N

A Normally someone would cough to bring up
the phlegm, but even with the cough reflex, still
fluid can get down inteo the lungs. So she is at a
high risk for what we consider the aspiratcion,
which is allowing fluid or other contents to go
into the lung.

Q We have heard some testimony before
about that Theresa has had respiratory
infections. Would that have any connection with
the aspiration you mentioned?

A Yes. It could. During the two years I
have taken care of her that has not been a problem
that I recall, but there is history to suggest
this was a problem in the bast.

Q You mentioned that you found her in

exceptionally good physical condition?
b

A Yes.
Q What do you attribute that to?
A Well, because I take care of many

residents in nursing homés, a lot has to do with

the care provided, because she is totally

dependent on others to provide her care. By -
pPaying very close attention to detail in her care,

this has allowed her to, at least during the time
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pericd I have been taking care of her, maintain a
very good physical condition.

Q Have you ever had patients or a
patient's family complain that nursing home
personnel just donft give that high quality of
care on all occasions?

A Yes. I have heard of instances where
there was some laxity in the care given.

Q What role doeg the family of the patient
have regarding -- is there any role the family of
the patient has in assuring the patient gets good
nursing home care?

A My experience has been that the more
attention the family gives to the care, the more
visits that are made, minor things are brought to
the attention of the staff and artended to before
they become major problems. 8o it's very
important for the family to be involved, or an
interested party to be involved, in the care.

Q Have you found Mr. Schiavo to be
invelved in Theresa's care?

A Yes. Very much s¢. And Michael has
requestea that if there are any changes in
treatments, any, even the slightest problems, that

4

he is to be notified immediately. I have spoken
&
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to him on variocus occasions about any changes I
thought may be needed in her care.

Q Dr. Gambone, you previously signed an
affidavit in this case. Let me show it to you.
Do you have a copy of that in your file?

A Yes. I do.

Q If you can refer to the copy in your
file. In paragraph three of your affidavit you
state that Theresa Marie Schiavo is not_competént
to make medical treatéent decisions for herself
and does not have a reasonable probability of
recovering competency so that she may exercise
directly her right to withdraw or withhold life
prolonging procedures.

Can you tell us how you reached the
conclugion that Theresa is not competent to make
medical treatment decisions and why there is no
probability she can regain that capaéity?

A Yes. I think this is part and parcel
with her vegetative state in that sﬁe cannot, she
does not exhibit any cognitive behavior. Any
volitional movement. Any ability that I could
perceive of her awareness of her environment or
surroundings.

Q In your affidavit, you also state that
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Therega Marie Schiavoe's condition is terminal.
Ler me, to refresh your recollection, read to you
the statutory definition of terminal . Terminal
condition means a condition caused by injury,
disease, or illness from which there ig no
reasonable medical probability of recovery and
which without treatment can be expected to cause
death.

Can you explain to us how you reached
the opinion that Theresa's physical condition isg
terminal?

A Yes. She has a feeding tube which is
placed into the stomach that allows us to provide
her with nutrition and hydration necessary for
life. Without this particular treatment, she
would pass on probably in a matter of weeks,

Q Have you had any -- have you treated any
patients in which feeding tubes were removed?

A Yes. I have.

Q Have you cared for patients who died ag

a result of removal of artificial provisions of

sustenance?

A Yes. I have.

Q Can you explain, medically, how that
oecurs?
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A Yes. Without food and nutrition, the

body uses its own energy sources, and when they
are exhausted, the vital organs shut down,
Particularly the kidneys. When the kidneys
deteriorate poisgons, which are actually breakdown
products of metabolism, accumulate in the body.
We use the word uremia to describe this
condition. Uremia is a condition which puts one
into a deep sleep and they would pass on in their
sleep.

Q I think you mentioned when a patient
does not receive nutrition. Is that the same case
for hydration? When a patient receives no
hydration at all?

A Yes. It is the same condition. It
would, I think, be difficult to give hydration and
no nutrition because it would prolong the process
of dying. It would extend it probably a month.br
maybe more. |

Q Does Theresa receive her hydration
through the gastric tube as well?

A Yes. She does.

Q If Theresa no longer receives nurfition
and hydration through the gastric tube, in your

estimation, how many days approximately would it
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be before she died?

A It would probably be within a couple of
weeks.

Q In your experience in treating patients
whe have so died, from a medical standpoint, was
it a painful death? Did they reguire pain
medications or significant pain medications as a
result cf withholding fluids and nutrition?

A No. I have never noted anyone to
express pain or show signs of pain. Grimacing.
Agitation. B

Q Aﬁg‘you aware of any -- have there been
any studies or articles written about the question
of whether a death by that means is painful?

A Yes. There has been quite a bit of
literature from the hospice organization. Alsc,
there were recent medical articles in the Journa]l
of the American Medical Association and alsc in
the New England Journal of Medicine which
discusses withdrawl of feeding tubes aﬁd the
process of dying. In all the literature that I

have reviewed, this is not a painful process.

MR. FELOS: Thank you, Dr. Gambone.

"l

THE COURT: Cross-examination?

259




10
11
12
i3
14
15
18
17
i8

ig

s 260
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY Ms. CAMPBELL:

Q Good morning, Dr. Gambone. My name is
Pam Campbell and I reéresent Terri's parents, Mr.
and Mrs. Schindler in this action. Have you ever
had the occasion to meet Mr. and Mrs. Schindler?

A No. I have not.

Q Are you aware of their position
concerning Terri's feeding tube, whether it should

be maintained or not?

A Yes, I am,.

Q How long have you been a practicing
physician?

A I have been in practice in the State of

Florida since 1976.
Q Is that when you also received your

Florida license?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Does Terri have a menstrual period?

A Yes.

Q Does that cause any extra problems for

her?
A No more than any woman, but this is
something that has to be attended to by the staff

because she cannot care for herself.
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Q Could she get pregnant?

A Yes. She can.

Q What would be Terri's life expectancy if
the feeding tube were to be maintained?

A I cannot give you a definite answer.
She is in good physical condition. As far as I
know, there is not a lot of data on studies o§
individuals like this and how locng they would live
on_a tube,

Q Do you recall what those articles.
suggest in the way of a life span?

A The articles suggest a shortened life
span, but I could not give You a specific number
because many of these people are starting at
different ages. She's starting at a very young
age and there just is not a lot of information
about someone that voundg,

Q - What is the avérage age of the patients
that you treat?

A The average age is probably about 20,
85.

Q, S0 Theresa is considerably one of your
younger patients?

A Yes. She is.

e} In all the patients you have treated,
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have there been any times when those patients, in
a similar vegetative state as Theresa, have come
out of that vegetative state?

A Not that 1 know of.

Q None that you specifically treated?
A Yes. That is correct.
c You testified with Mr. Felos that you

had not been contacted ever regarding a change in
cendition regarding Theresa. Could you elaborate
on that a little bit more?

MR, FELOS: Your Honor, I ohject to the
form of the guestion. I believe the testimony and
gquestion was were you ever contacted regarding a ‘
change of condition regarding Theresa's
cogni?ance. He sa;d no.

MS. CAMPBELL: It is my receilection it
was not specifically to cegnizance, so that is\
what I was trying to get to.

THE COURT: Well, the question had to do
with éf something happened, how would yocu handle
it. The doctor said those type of changes, if
significant, they would contact the physician. I
tﬂink he gimply testified as to procedure. I
think your questicn is appropriate.

*

Q (By Ms. Campbell) Thank you. Doctor,
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have you ever bheen contacted by any of the nurses
in the two years you have taken care of Theresa

regarding any change in her condition?

A Yes. 1 believe I have.

Q Would that be in regard tc any laughter?
A No.

Q Woﬁld it be in regard to any twitching?
A Not that I recall.

Q Perhaps a fever?

A Yes. ’There was an instance where she
kad an upper respiratory infection that I recall.
Q So any medical type of change in
Theresa, one way or the other, the nurses would

contact you?
A Yes.

o] When you go to the nursing home, do you

review the chart each time?

A Yes.

Q Do you spegffically review the nursing
notes?

A Yes.

o} Do you review the recreation notes?

A Not really.

Q Do you review the social service

progress notes?.
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A From time to time I do.

Q Were ycu taking care of Theresa Schiavo

*

since February 198772

A 19¢28.

o} 1598 is when you first toock over?
A Um-hmm.

Q Do you recall reading in there any

progress notes concerning Terri laughing at jokes?

A No. I don't recall.

Q Would that make a difference to you in
your opinion in the affidavit that you filed with
this Court?

A I guess that this is very unugual
information that I was not aware of.

Q I'd like to read to you some of the
notes and see if that would bear a change on the
affidavit that you have filed.

MR. FELOS: Your Honor, I object. We -
have gone through this objection et al before.
Counsel is not introducing in evidence the medical
records, social service notes of the facility, and
because they are not being introduced intc
evidence, ghe can't read the contents of those
documents in the proceedings, which in essence

will make them evidence. €
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We objeqt on fﬁgse grounds. In
addition, as a matéer of fairness, Your Honor,
there are probably a couple thousand pages =i
medical records for:Theresa Schiavo which were
subpoenaed and both‘sides had copies. Had
opposing counsel mentioned there would be the
introduction of some medical reccrds in this
trial, we then would have had an opportunity to
have one of our witnesses comp the thousands of
pages of records and specifically present to the
Court the thousands of entries in those records
stating the patient was nonresponsive.

But we have not done that because thesge
records were not to be introduced into evidence.
So I think it's unfair to now selectively take one
or two lines of those thousands of pages and‘try
to get them into evidence by reading them.

THE COURT: What is the basis of your
statement that they are not coming into evidence?

MR. FELOS: Your Honor, we exchanged a
list of documents that each party -- after the
status conference, we exchanged a list of
documents that the parties were going to

introduce. We listed our documents. We were told

the documents that the respondents were going to
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introduce and the medical racords were not listed.

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell?

MS. CAMPBELL: I think it would be
proper under the impeachment process. This doctor
has testified that he reviewed the records and
came up with his opinion to render before this
Court in the form of an affidavit. If there are
records -- when he says he reviewed the records,
they are voluminous, but the records that I
specifically am going te refer to are since his
care.

I would believe that if he is making a
statement of an opinion based on her records and
on his experience with this patient, he would be
aware of what these notes say specifically
pertaining to her laughter. Mr. Felos is the one
who provided me with these records.

MR. FELCS: Your Honhor, number one, we

can‘t crosg-examine a line in the medical records.

If counsel wanted to present evidence that a
social service worker perhaps interpreted
Theresa'’s Schiave's sounds as laughter, she had
the opportunity to find the social service worker

and subpoena her as a witness. List her as a

~ witness and subject her to cross-examination.
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Number one, the records are hearsay.

But number two, even beyongd that peint,
because they were not going to be introduced and
used, we did not take the step of geing through
the balance of the thousands of pages of records
te have an-opportunity to rebut that. .

THE COURT: Well, clearly théy are
hearsay, but there are excepticns to the hearsgy
rule. One of them is business records. You know,
the way Mr. Erhardt drafted the statute,
contemporanecusly by business documents. I don't
know what the record is because it's not in
evidence.

Were this a trial over simply dollars, I
would probably hold you to a little higher
standard than what you put on your pretrial
statement. For the very limited purpose, although
I'm not sure it matters what happened three years
age, 1 think what really.matters is what the
condition is today, but for the limited purpose of
impeachment, I'll permit you to allow thé doctor
to read the note.

MS. CAMPRELL: Thark you.-

THE COURT: The evidence is such,

because it has not been listed, but for
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impeachment purposes see if that alters --

MS. CAMPBELL: As one note of
correction, we didn't have a pretrial order in
this case which reguired the exchange of evidence,
Both parties did give each cther a list, but there
was net a specific pretrial order that was
provided in this case.

THE COURT: We will stand corrected
then, although with the caliber of attorneys, I am
nct sure I need an or&er. So you may show the
notes. You will, for the record, tell us what
dare those notes are and who is the author.

MR. FELOS: May I see the nctes you are
going Lo show?

MS. CAMPBELL: May I approach the
witness?

THE CQURT: Yes.

o] (By Ms. Campbell} Doctor, I am showing
you a page out ©of the activities progress notes
dated 2-11-98. Were you treating Theresa in
February of '28 to your knowledge?

A Yes. The date of my first vieit was
February the Sth. This is dated February 1liths.

Q If you can go halfway down in the middie

of the note where it begins "staff residents are
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familiar". If you could please read that
sentence.
A Before ] read that sentence --

Q Um-~hmm.

A -- could I just ask -- I see that this
is signed by a CTR. Could you explain to me what
a CTR is?

Q I'm not too sure. Looks like her name
is Marie. I'm not gure what the last name is.'

A I'm not familiar with the term CTR, as
to what that signifies.

Q I'm not familiar, other than what the
note refers to. If you would like to take a
minute and read the whole note.

A Yeah. It would help me to know who this
person is, and you know, are they a recreatiocnal
therapist? 1Is this.a medical person?

MR. FELOS: I believe, if it would
assist the proceedings, this is a recreational
therapigt.

THE WITNESS: All right.

MS. CAMPBELL: If you would like to take
a minute and read the full note.

A Qkay. Resident's status is unchanged.

She is minimally responsive, oriented times one.
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Q (By Ms. Campbell) If you really -- I°'d
just like you to read=sthat silently to yourself
and then go down to the main part Qhere it says
residents are fam{liar.

A Oh. Ckay. Would you like me to read
where it says staff residents?

THE COURT: We don’'t need that inte the
record.

MS. C#MPBELL: Ckay.

THE COURT: It ‘almost does sound like
that is trueihearsay.

MS. CAMPBELL: Okay. If you can take a
minute to read that note.

THE WITNESS: Yes. I have read it. -

Q (By Ms. Campbell) Thank you. I will

take it back. Do yocu see where it specifically

‘refers to visitors stopping to tell her jokes?

A Yes. It also says that she occasionally
laughs. It does not suggest a cause/feffect’
relationship. &

Q I'm now going to, I would like to now
show you recreation notés dated July 23, 19%%. If
vyou can specifically read this first portion of
it.

A This is signed on a different page. Do
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you know who made this entry?

Q I do not. Would these gkypically be
notes that you would have available to ¥you to look
at in the file? &%

A Yes. Those notes are available to me
and I did not review those notes from the
recreational therapist.

Q Excuge me. "I do have the second page.
It does not really have any notes on it, just the
signature.

A Okay. Thank you.

MR. FELOS: May I see the signature?

Q (By Ms. Campbell} On thesze notes, do

You see any comments about --

MR. FELOS: Your Honor, I object. I
believe what the Court has allowed or instrugted
is the witness may read the notes and then be
asked whether }t changes his opinion; without
having the substance of the note read or
explained.

THE COURT: I believe that was what we
are to do was to permit the doctor to read the
notes to see if they altered his Opinion.

Q (By Ms. Campbell) Have you ever

witnessed Theresa Schiavo laughing?

i
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A No.

o] Have you ever told her any jokes?
A No.

Q If you -- have you ever witnessed

Theresa Schiavo with her mother, Mary Schindler?

A No.

Q If you wére made aware of, on a regular
basis, Mrs, Schindiér going to the hospital or to
the nursing home té:visit with Terri and there
being signs of laughter, tears, if she is having
her menstrual period she may moan from apparent
pain, would that information, in additional
coupled with the additional note I have just shown
you, would that alter your opinion any as far as
Terri's cognitive ability?

A it would not change my assessment of
her.

Q And why would that not?

F-3 During my examination and the
examination of many others that I have reviewed
that are physicians that are familiar with
individuals like Terri and how grimacing or
movement are sometimes misinterpreted as being
part of a cognitive or thought process. A

reaction to something.

272




10
13
12
i3
i4

1%

16

17
ig
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

I will give you an example. When I
examined her, Terri will look around. Her eyes
will move right te lefr. And when you enter the
room, if you enter the room when she isilooking,
she turns her eyes to that side. It appears that
she is acknowledging you. It appears that way.
You can walk up to Terri and take your hand and
put it over her eye and she will not blink.

You can take anyone who has the least-
bit of consciousneas and put their hand anywhere
near their eye, from the side, and they will
blink. And she will continue to loock, but will

not plink. It is hard for me to appreciate that

- she knows that something else is there if she

can't even appreciate a threat, which is a very
basic instinct.

Q Are you aware or deeg Terri currently
receive any physical or occupational therapy?

A She has from time to time. I think ag
this point therapy is provided on, they use the
term on a regtorative basis. It is not done by a
licenged therapist. It is done by nursing staff
who have been trained in therapy.

Q How often does she receive that kind of

restorative therapy?

A
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A She should receive this restorative
therapy every day as part of the nureging care.

Q Would that assist in any stimulation to
be provided to Theresa?

A You know, I would -- I'm not sure what
You are getting at, but I would assume that any
type of stimuiation would be something, even just
in the daily care, which is something that could
provoke some response if it was preseng.

Q Is Theresa currently being treated for
any infections in the two years you have been
treating her?

A I recall an upper respiratory infection
during that period of time.

e And she was treated?

A Yes. 7

c Have you at any time since you have been
taking care of her had Mr. Schiave ask you not aé
treat an infection?

A No. There were never any occasions
where he withheld any treatment that I recall. He
was very cooperative.

Q Are you aware of any discussions Ehat

tock place between the nursing home and Mr.

&

Schiavo concerning the treatment of infections for
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Theresa?

A No. Not that I recall.

o] Not in the two years you have been
treating her?

A No.

MS. CAMPBELL: I have no further
questions.
THE COURT: Redirect?
MR. FELOS: Thank you, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:

Q You were asked about the treatment of
infections, whether under your care Terri has been
treated for any infections, and you mentioned a
respiratory infection. In fact, hasn't Terri had
a bladder infection that was treated?

A Yes. Now that you mention it, she aléo

has had a bladder infection.

Q How was that bladder infection treated?
A with an antibiotic.

Q How were the antibiotics administered?
A Through the feeding tube.

o] Were there any IVs?

A I don't recall. But, you know, I really

was not prepared to give this detail on her two
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year history.

Q Um - hmm .

a Whether we used an IV at some point in
time.

Q In your testimony, I believe in the
cross-examination you centered on the word
"ovcasional” when Ms. Campbell did read a portion
of the notes. I think you made the comment that
because the word occasicnal was used, that would
tend to suggest that these are not cognitive
responses on Terri's part. Can you explain a
little bit more why that is so?

A Well, the way it was written, I guess
you would have to read the statement, but the way
it was written, it is just that passersby are
mzking jokes and occasicnally she laughed. Now,

okay, does that mean that from that jnformation I

" should conclude that she was laughing at their

jokes? This was a, you-know, she received some
information which she processed and then decided
to laugh in response to it?

Q You were on cross-examination and
opposing counsel mentioned that Theresa's mother
believes that Terri laughs and responds. )

Theresa's mother testified in her deposition that
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one of the actions that she takes to be a
cognitive response of Terri is that when she
speaks on one side of Terri, Terri will move her
head. However, in her deposition, Mrs. Schindler
said sometimes she will turn her head and look
right at me.

The fact that Theresa does not turn her
head every time to look at her mother, would that
support or detract from your opinion?

A I think a consistency would be helpful
to me. If you said nine out of ten times she
turned to me, that would have some meaning. But
if it was occasional, a random act --

Q Sometimesg?

A -~ Suggests a more random act rather
than a purposeful act. That is what T can glean

from the information that you have provided and

from the notes of the recreational therapist.

o] You were alsoc asked about, I think
menstrual pain or pain or moaning. Do you agree
with the opinion of Dr. Barmhill that moans théc
Terri has in response to certain stimuli that we
would consider painful is a brain stem response?

A Yes. T would. I think that, if I ean

just give you an'example, that if you were ro =
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touch a hot stove with your finger, you would pull
it away very rapidly or before you really
perceived what had happened because that is a
higher function. I think this is & brain stem
response.

o Okay. How often do you go to nursing
homes?

A Every day.

Q You are familiar with -- you are board
certified in making sure people get guality care?

A Yes, sir.

Q Is it fair tc say you are somewhat
familiar with how nursing homes work?

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you have any idea as to what
training a person who is in the activity program
of a nursing home might have? Do they go to
medical schocl?

A No. They do not.

Q Do they go to nursing school?

A No. .They do nor.

Q Do you know whether they have any
clinical training or skills to be hired to sit
with the residents and play cards with them or.

watch TV with Hg}m as engaged in activities with
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them?

A I'm not aware of the specific
qualifications of the individuals that had made
notes in the record.

Q Would you disagree that -- would you
disagree with the statement that no specific
training is reguired for those positions?

A Perhaps that is true. I really could
not say for sure.

Q As a physician, would you give much
weight to a medical diagnosis given by someone
hired by a nursing home to play cards or watch
television with a resident?

A Would you repeat that gquestion again?

Q Would you give, as a physician,-would
You give much weight to a medical opinion given by
an individual hired by a nursing home to play
cards and have activities with a patient?

A I certainly would respect their opinion
and would review the situation myself and try to
recreate what they have described. You knew, in
my experience and from my discussions with others
who are more knowledgeablerof medical issues,
this was not apparent to my ocbservation or the

observation of those whose judgment I feel, you
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know, is worthy of note. .
o Thank you. Dr. Gambone, you are a
caring physician; you are interested in Theresa's

welfare; is that correct?

A Yes. I am.

Q Is there any reason whatscever that you
would not say you believe Theresa was responsive
or had cognition if you felt that was so?

A No. There is nc reason for me not io
only give you the information that I have and
make an opinion based upon my knowledge and
expertise in the area.

MR. FELOS: ©Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Any recross?

MS. CAMPBELL: No.

THE COURT: Is Dr. Gambone under
subpoena?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Is there any reason for him
to be retained further?

MR. FELOS: No.

MS. CAMPBELL: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Doctor, yocu are

released from your'subpoena.

THE WITNESS: Thank you. =
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MR. FELOS: Call Beverly Tyler..
THE BAILIFF: Stop and stand here. Face

the judge. Raise your right hand to receive the

oath.
(THEREUPON, THE WITNESS WAS SWORN ON OATH BY
THE CQURT.)
THE COURT: Be seated in that chair,
please.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:

Q Good morning.

A . Good morning.
Q State your full name and address,
please.

A My name is Beverly Tyler. 158 Adair

Street in Decatur, Georgia.

o How are you employed at this time,
Ms. Tyler?
A Executive director of an crganizaticn

called Georgia Bealth Decisions.

Q Can you tell us what is Georgia Health
Decisions?
A Sure. We are a nonprofit organization

in Georgia. Federally tax exempt. QOur mission is

threefold. Educate Georgians about health care
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issues, understand their attitudes and values

around health care decisions, and report those to
people who make health policy in our state.

Q Tell us a little bit about the structure
of yoﬁr organizaticn. How many employees?

A There are eight employees at Georgia
Health Decisions. Three of them live in Atlanta.
Cthers are community based. We do a iot of
community based work around the state. There is a
volunteer Board of Directors of ahout 40 people
and many volunteers w@g work on projects
throughout the state. '

Q Why was Georgia Health Decisions formed?

A We began ocur organization in 19%1. It
was sort of at the height of, at the time, ;alking
about health care reform in the state. We had not
had much managed care. Twenty-two percent were
uninsured. There were a lot of rising co;ts iﬁ
insurance. A lot of those issues everybody in the
country faced. A lot of plans about hezlth care
reform. We were the public voice. We formed to
be the public veoice in health care issues.

e} Have you been executive director since
the organization was formed?

A I have. Since 1991.
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o What is the source of funding?

A It's a charitable foundation
primarily. We get some founding on a proiect
basis from state government. Not a regular
funding from the state government.

Q Ms. Tyler, please tell us your
educational background. Also your employment
background prior to being executive director of
Georgia Health Decisions.

A Masters. Bachelors. Masters in
Geography from the Univsity of Georgia. My first
employmerit was from '71 to '73, environmental
planmer, Georgia Department of Transportation. My
second employment was at an architectural firm,
Stevens Wilkinson Marketing Directors. There was
thirteen years prior to coming to Georgia Health
Decisions.

o} Why is it that a health care related
organization selected somebody whose educatiocnal
employment background was cutside of health care
for that position?

A Because the whole premise of Georgia
Health Decisions was to bring the public voice
into the health care system without any

preconceived ideas about what that should be or
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what the sclutions for health care were. The
pecple, the Board that was forming Georgia Health
Decisions at that time, Qas afraid if they hired
somebody with a health care background that they
would come with a lot of baggage. A lot of
preconceived ideas with the solutions. They
specifically looked for someone cutside of health
care,

Q Refreshing approach. Ms. Tyler, are you
familiar with a report by American Health
Decisicns titled "The Quest t¢ Die with Dignivyn?
An analysis cf American values, opinions, and
attitudes concerning end of life care?

A I was the primary author of that
report. It is a focus group study. I conducted
at least half, maybe moke, of the focus groups

related to that study.

0 What was the overall purpose of this
report?
A Well, the overall purpose was to really

try to understand how Americans feel about heélth
care issues at the end.of life. To sort of
identify their values, opinions, and attitudes.
It was funded by the Rcbert Wood Johnson

Foundation because they were interested in
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beginning two initiatives. One, to educate
physicians about health care at end of life. The
other, to create a sort of statewide public
awareness campaign arcund health care issues
around the end of life. They wanted to know the
public starting point on those issues as they
funded those two other projects.

Q Was this report issued by American
Health Decisions rather than Georgia Health
Decisions, which was your organization?

A Sure. American Health Decisions is sort
of a loose affiliaticon of a number of srate
associations who do similar things to what we do.
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation was familiar

with those and called several of us to a meeting

" together to talk about how to do this approach.

What expertise that American Health Decisions had
to do this.

It became clear that Georgia Health
6;cisions wag sort of the organization with the
most experience in this. Becauge it was a
national study, it seemed appropriate that
American Health Decisions be the grantee for the
grant, although Georgia Health Decisions sort of

led the effort. Wisconsin also had a small role
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in the develcpment o% the study.

o How much did the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundaticon pay to fund this research and report?

A About 5250,000.

Q You mentioned a 'little bit about how the
report was conducted. I would like to go into
that in more specifics. What you mentioned is
something about a focus group research. Can you
explain a little more what that is? How the
methodelogy of the research was conducted?

A This is qualitative as opposed to
quantitative. Qualitative is often done when you
want to find cut why people feel the way tﬂg; do.
How do they come to the values they have. To
explore more the attitudes and opinions that you
can't get in a simple yes or no answer where you
can count answers. ‘

So focus groups are small conversations
led by a trained facilitator with a predetermined
set of questions asked in every group so you ére
having the same conversation with the same
people. The participants are randomly selected to
represent the cross section of peaple you are
trying to get the opinions and attitudes of.

The conversations are recorded, and
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transcribed, and later analyzed in different ways
to figure out what are thé recurring feelings.
What are the recurring attitudes and opinions of
pecple that participated.

Q How ig it determined how many focus
groups you had and how many people are in them?

A It depends on what you are trying to
reach. We were trying to reach a cross section of
Americans. We did a certain number of groups.
Twelve throughout the country. Sort of randqmly
sélected cross demographics. Different ages,
incomes, racial backgrounds, religious
backgrounds.

We wanted to know if there were
differences of opinion on end of life care
because of age, religiocus background, ethnic
background. So we did a number of specific groups
with people of a certain religious background, age
background, or ethnic background.

Q How many focus groups and actual
participants were theré in this study?

A Thirty-six in this study across the
country. About 385 participants.

Q Thirty-six groups with 385 participants?

= A Yes.
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Q Were there any other professionals
assisting you in the focus group research and data

collection analysis?

A Sure.
o} Who were those people?
A The primary team was a woman name Terri

Lofton (phonetic), a medical anthropologist, who
is trained to lock at conversations and draw out
what the values or underlying conversations are.
A public policy anélyst, Michael Perry, was
involved. I did part of the analysis. A
statistician name Frank Miller did part and an
ethosist from Wisconsin, Dr. Jack Stanley.

Q Ms. Tyler, when was that repocrt issued?

A In September of 1997.

Q Have you participated in any further
research and study in this area since the
publication of your report?

A I have. Based on some of the findings
we had from this study, we went back to Georgia
and wanted to explore some of the issues a little
deeper in Georgia. We held twelve focus groups
randomly in Georgia with Georgia citizens. Nine
with health care professicnals. We most recently

have done eleven focus groups with family members
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of patients tied in to hospitals in Georgia in the
lasg year. Also done similar work in North
Carclina. We continue to &o some work onethis
issue.

Q Have you presented the findings in your
report to any professional organization?

A Quite a number.

o] Tell us a few.

A The national meeting of the American
Society on Aging. National Hospice Organization.
At John Hopkins Institute, I've been a guest
lecturer on this issue.

Q Have you lectured on end of life issues
before any organizations?

A Sure.

Q Te your knowledge, Ms. Tyler, has there
ever been undertaken or published a study or
report in this area as extensive as "The Quest to
Die with Dignity"?

A No. No. The reasoen being, it's pretty
expensive an undertaking to do this nationwide..
You have to have a funder be interested in getting
the information, like Robert Wood Johnson was, to
be able to do this work.

e At this time, I offer the witness as an
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expert on the subject of American's values,
opinions, and attitudes concerning end of life
care.

THE COURT: Do you wish to voir dire?

MS. CAMPRELL: No, Your Henor. 1 accept
those as expert in that area.

THE COURT: Excuse me?

MS. CAMPBELL: I accept her as an expert
in that particular area.

THE COURT: Thank yeou.

Q (By Mr. Felos} Ms. Tyler, what
materials have you reviewed in preparation for
your testimony?

A I reviewed paragraph ten from the
suggestion cof bias on ‘the part of the guardian ad
litem. I reread the depesition of éobert
Schindler, depositicn of Mary Schindier, the
deposition of Robert Schindler, Jr. and the
deposition of Susan Carr.

Q In your research and report, did you
take note of the ways in which persons express
their desires and feelings regarding the
application of artificial life support and other
end of life medical treatment issues?

A Yes. - I think cone of the key things we
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found is how difficult the conversation is about
death and dying. How much people avcid the
conversation. Generally, it's stimulated by
outside stimuius. It is a very short
conversgation, unless:peop}e have had sort of a
family experience that leads them to have a more
indepth conversation on this issue, or if they are
in the middle of a terminal illness themselves.
For the most part, aveoidance and very short
conversations.

Q Let's backtrack from the fact that oral
statements tend to be categorized by an event and
look at written directives.

A Okay.

Q What percentage of adult Americans have
living wilis, if you know?

. A That is -- there are no strong
statistics on that because of the issues, issues
of language or those kinds of things, but the best
estimates from people in the field are about 13 to
15 percent of people actually have a written
document . Gene;ally those are people older --
over S0, over 55 -- who have had some catalyst in
wanting to complete a document of that nature.

Q Would it be fair to sgay that a persod in
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their twenties would be:much less likely than the
naticnal average to have a Qritten living will or
directive?

A Absolutely. It's not a conversation
that pecple in their twenties have. It's
certainly not something they feel compelled to do,
because they are young, healthy. It's not going
to happen to them for years Lo COme. Like I said,
there are no statistics. My personal opinion is
that I would be surprised if 2 percent of the
populaticn in their twenties actually had a

written document.

Q Of the population in their twenties?
A Um-hmm.
Q The fact that Theresa Schiave did not

. have a written advanced directive specifying her

medical treatment wishes, because of that fact, do
you think it is fair to say because she did not
have an advanced directive that she wanted to be
kept alive artificially?

A No. Not at all. Most people who do not
have advanced directives would tell us when their
time came they would like to die naturally. The
main issues why people don't have them is because

they don't like the document. They don't
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understand. They have a whole problem with the
legal business of putting it in writing, but they
trust their family members to do what they want
done for them.

Q Let's go back to the method in which
oral statements are made. Was that addressed
anywhere in your report? The issue of how
conversations come about?

A Yeah. Like I said, a lot of them are
started by some kind of external stimulus. I
marked a passage in the report that might help
clarify that for you. If you need to know, it is
on Page 18 of the report.

Some of those in focus groups who had -~
conversations with a local -- |

THE COURT: Stop. You read much quicker
than you talk. ©Our court reporter is super, but
the machine has a limitation, so slow done,
please.

A I will. Thank you. Some of those of
the focus groups who had coversations with the *
loved one appeared to have not really had a
conversation at all, but rather to have made a

spontanecus chservation about something they do

not want to happen to them. They told of vague
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references te being hooked up to machines or
seeing a television program and having said don't
let that happen to me. Many of the focus groups
believed that is good enough.

When talking about lcved ocnes, many
participants made comments like "they just Kknow
how I feel" and "I trust them to make the right
decisions" suggesting the} do not feel compelled
to write these wishes down as advanced directives.

So for most people, some kind of
external stimulus. Some short conversation where
you say that I don't want that to ever happen to
me.

g So I gather, based upon your research,
that the average American does not sit down éne
day and go to their spouse and say, "Well, gee.
If I happen to be in a totally impaired condition
with minimal degree of consciousness, then under
those circumstances, this is what I'd like you to
do for me."?

A No. Not at all. First cof ail, you
know, I told you we avoid having that conversation
altogether anyway. We actually avoid even
associating with people going through death and

dying, unless we have to. For most péople, it's
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nat sort of in the realm of conscicusness the kind

of decisions that may need to be made one day.
The kind of decisions that should they be in that

place in their life, without that consent or

awareness. You don't have a detailed conversation

about specific treatments that you would or would
not want.

So they use these metaphors or
euphemisms like "being hooked up", *pull the
plug". Those kinds of things.

o} Now in this case, Ms. Tyler, there has
been evidence that Theresa Schiavo, in response to
her grandmother's impending death and the
dependency issue of her uncle, said to her husband
rhat if I had to be cared for by others, please
don't let me live like that. And in response to a
televisien program where somebody was severely
impaired or on machines, either said to a
sister-in-law or her husband, "Not for me. I
don't want to be kept alive artificialily."

Assuming that occurred, do you have an
opinicn whether such declarations of Theresa
Schiave were made in a manner consistent with the
way you found declarations to be made in your

report?
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A Yes. I mean, they really reflect many
of the underlving values people bring toc this
discussion. Sort of the value of freedom and
independence and self-reliance of not wanting to
be cared for by something else. Not wanting te be
a burden to family. Wanting death with dignity:
Wanting a quality of life that provides them some
level of independence. Again, I have passages

that I could read to you regarding those values.

Q Let me backtrack a little bit first.
A Ckay.
Q I think you already mentioned in your

report that people use phrases like "hooked up on
machines™. As you got inte your focus groups and
probed that deeper, what did people mean when they
said *I don't want to be hooked up to machines"?
A They basically heant they don't want

their life artificially extended. If they can’'t
live on their own, they don't want a machine or
some other kind of life sustaining treatments to
keep them alive beyond their natural death. Like
again, a euphemism to all the kinds of things that

could be done to a perscn to extend their life =

:beyond their natural death.

Q Including artificial hydration and
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nutrition?
A Yes.
Q In your focus group research, were

people familiar with the nature of the medical
devices used to sustain people? I mean, did they
know how a respirator worked? What has to be done
to intubate a patient? How artificial provision
of sustenance and hydration is made? Did people
understand the technicalities of how that was
done?

A only those who had been through the
experience with a loved one or someone close to
them. But the normal person, lay person who has
never been through that, they really don't. They
don't have any clue and they don't want to'think
about ir or talk about it and certainly not find
out about it on their own.

They use the terms "don’'t put me on
machines™. "Don't hook mé up". "If it is my
time, pull the plug". Do you want me to sort of
read the report?

Q A euphemism which means what to them?

A which means let me die a natural death.

3

When it's my time, it's my time. Sort of letr me

%

go.
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Q I think we touched on this. On scme of
the factors that were included in that
expression. Not being a burden. Being
self-reliant. Let me ask it this way. What
factors did you find most concerned people
regarding end of life medical treatment and
application of artificial life support?

A Quality of life is probably the primary
concern. Quality. of life also deals with
self-reliance, independence, being able to take
care of themselves. Not being a burden on their
family. Having some kind of dignity at the.end of
their lives. Quality of life really was a key
factor. People define that in different ways;

Q Did you cite in your report -- do Qou
have any examples in your report that demonstra;e
that concern that most pgople felt when using |
these metaphors?

A About quality of life?

Q Yes.

A Um-hmm. While some individuals maintain
they could gain satisfaction from life if they
were aware and could only minimally communicate,

&

others contend that quality of life would be

conditional upon their being independent and
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having some degree of mental comprehension and
physical ability. Being dependent on others for
every need envoked images of indignity and
humiliation.

Q I think you menticned values of being
self-reliant or freedom and personal control.

Were there any examples of this?

A Given the uncertainty about the proper
usage and benefits of medical technoleogy, manﬁ
participants feared they or a loved one may remain
on life support without the possibility of
regaining a semblance of normal life, being in a
vegetative gtate or unconsciously aware kept on
life support artificially. Being hcoked in a trap
which they are ensnared by dependency to the wires
that plug them into an exterior power source and
food tubes that deliver food and oxygen.

This entrapment occurs because they no
ionger have ccnﬁrol of choices ag individuals, but
are subordinate to the rules and procedures of
medical and legal institutions. So a lot of
conversaticon about that.

Q Were thege prevalent or consistent
themes that you found among individuals?

A Very consistent. I would say that it
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surprised me, the conszstency with which the
pecple talk about that. When it is their time,
they would like to have a natural death. They
don't want to be hooked up to machines. They want
te sort of go naturally.

This issue of self-reliance and
independence and being a burden is really quite
prevalent.

Q Was there any themes, or did the fact of
the probability of recovering, factor inte a
person's feelings as to whether they would want
artificial life support?

A Certainly. I mean, people don't say
that they never want any kind of life support if
it can give them a normal quality of life. If it
can return them to some quality of life, they
certainly will do what they call try it for a
while.

What they really don't want, when pecple
say I don't want to be on machines, they don't
necessarily mean I don't want to be on a machine
ever, but they don't want to live on machines is
what they mean. To be on them to prolong death
when death is, would be the natural extension of

what happens to them.
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Q Or when there is no hope of improvement?
A When there is no hope of improvement.
Q Did you come across any themes in your

report about how a patient felt or person felt
about their perscnal appearance about not wanting
to be seen by others if they were in an impaired
or unconscious gtate?

A There was sort of an under theme of that
that came out. We did not pursue it a lot because
it did not beccme obvious until we had read a lot

of the transcripts, but there were a number of

" people, because of a control issue, who did not

want to die in front of somebody because they
don't like to be seen as vulnerable and weak. Sco,
yes. It was not as prevalent a theme as many of
the other themes that came out of the study.

Q In your opinion, Ms. Tyler, were the
oral declarations as relayed to you of Theresa
Schiave consistent or inconsistent ¢f the
predominant values of the persons found in your
report?

A Exactly what we expected, particularly
for someone her age. That she Qould not have had
an intense conversation about this issue, thata

her conversation would have been the result of 3
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personal illness, an uncle, a grandmother's
iliness, a televigion show. Somebody that they
know.

That it would have been short
conversations like I would not want to live that
way. I would not want pecple to take care of me.
I would not want te be hooked up. If that happens
te me, pull the plug. Those are typical kinds of
conversations. Yes, it would be a typical way
that people &ould convey their wishes on this
igsue.

Q You may recall in the depositions of Mr.
and Mrs. Schindler and their daughter, Susan, and
son, Robert, statements to the effect that if they
were in a permanent or vegetative state with no
hope of recovery that they would want all medical
treatments whatspever to keep them alive. I tﬁink
three out of the four said if they developed
gangerine and needed to have limbs amputatred to
maintain life in that condition, they would do so

rather than choose to die. Do you recall those

statementas?
A I do.
&
Q In your research and interviews and

focus groups of hundreds of people, have you ever
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come across a belief ;r expression that extreme? _

A I have not. We certainly had people
that say, yes, I want to be kept alive, but not to
the extreme that they want amputation or surgery
or anything like that if they were in a vegetative
state.

Q In the deposition of Mrs. Schindler,
she mentioned that if she was in that condition, a
permanent vegetative state, even if the medical
treatment impoverished her family, she would =2till
want it. Do you recall that statement?

A I do.

o] Was the cost ¢f care and burden on a
family, financ%al burden on a family, something
that 'was & theme that came up in your research?

A Very much s¢. As a matrer of fact, when
they talked about being a burden, the first thing
they talk about is a financial burden and not
wanting to exhaust-fami}y resources to take care
of me if there is no hope of recovery. I would
net want my family to be left financially
strapped. I would not want to use up all our
resources.

S50 being a burden sort of starts with
being a financial burden and working its way

4
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304
through to be a physical and emotiocnal burden.

Q I would like to read to you from Mary
Schindler's deposition of August 12, 1888. Page
39, Line 16.

Question. Well, in your mind, does
there come a point in time where the experience of
discomfort or pain on the part of the patient
becomes a factor in deciding whether to remove
life support? “

Answer. No.

Were the persons in your focus groups at
all concerned about suffering pain in end of life
care and how that igsue of pain related to
continued artificial treatment?

A Certainly. Pain is -- we talked tec
people about how far they would go to pursue care
and what should be done as far as treatment of
pecple with terminal illness. One of the first
things is do whatever ybu can to manage pain.

That is everyone's primary concern. Both as a
patient and as a family member, that is a primary
concern.

The compassion of not wanting someone to
be in pain, they would say, "I don't care. Give

them as much pain relief as they need, even if it
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hastens death, even if it makes them sort of
unconscicus, because I don't want to see my loved
one suffer.” So pain is really a key issue with
people who are talking about how far teo pursue
care and how much pain medication tc administer.

Q In determining in your study, for the
average perscn in determining if a person
determined they did not want to be kept alive
artificially, they wanted to go when their tiﬁe
came, they did not want tc be taken care of by
others, they did not want to be a burden, did you
see much distinction in that belief for a patient
who might be in a vegetative state as opposed to a
patient who might be significantly and permanently
impaired?

A Certainly. Because when you talk -about
quality of life, cognizance seems to be a key
there. You know, if people can be éognizant and
can be aware and communicate in some way with
their loved ones, many people define that as
quality cof live to continue as oppeosed te when you
sort of lose that level cof coghizance, that
ability to communicate in any way to have
meaningful exchanges.’

Q What did they mean by communicate and
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306
have meaningful exchanges?

A Let me see if I can find some examples
that might help that. The importance of
self-reliance was most evident in participants®
discussion concerning quality of life. This
feeling was dramatically expressed by a guy in’ New
Orleans who confided "I really, truly would rather
be dead than to sit down and have somebody do just
about everything for me."

Ed Leeman {phonetic¢} from West Virginia
defined quality of life as being able to care for
your basic needs. Feed yourself. Go to the
bathrecom. Get up éﬁd move about. Do things. for
yourself. As long as you don't consider yourself
a purden on people. A man from Maine admitted he
would not want anyone to take care of him, and an
Indiana woman felt strongly that she did not want
to depend on someone else. Those are the kinds of
ways people talked about this guality of life.

Q Well, when people said, geé, I would
want to stay alive if I could communicate, what

did they mean? Did they mean talking?
it

H

Conversation?
A No. They did not necessarily have to

have conversations. What they had to have is some
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cue of I'm sending you a signal; I'm sending you 07
cne back. We understand what is geoing on with
each other. I'm conveying to you my wishes. A
lot of times you can still do that even if you
can't talk. You can write it down or it's a
conveying of wishes. Conveying an exchange of
thought processes.

MR. FELQOS: I have no further
guestions. Thank you.

THE COURT: Ms. Campbell, cross-
examination?

CROSS-EXAMINATICN

BY MS. CAMPRELL:

Q Thank you. Good morning, Ms. Tyler. My
name is Pam Campbell. I am the attorney for Mr.
and Mrs. Schindler, the parents of Theresa
Schiavo.

A Certainly.

Q Is there an organization similar to
yours in Florida? F

A There is not a Florida Health
Decisions. There is an organization called Aging
with Dignity tﬁéc does gome of the similar kinds

of work around health care at end of life helping

pecple prepare and have convergations.
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Q Did they participate in this national
study?

A They did not.

Q out of your study, there were 385
participants?

A Um-hmm.

Q So your comments and readings this
morning from the different parts of the study are
based on these 385 participants?

A They are.

Q What was the average age of the
participant?
A I can't tell you. What we did was, for

twelve of the groups, we did a cross section of
the American population and recruited individuals
to represent the different age groups of the )
population. Then we did some groups specifically
with participants that were 18 to 34; 35 to 55;
55 to 6% and over 65. Thét way we did not ever
alienate the average age of all groups together.

Q Did you notice a distinction in pecple
of the age group of 25 to 35 versus older people
70 and up?

a There was some very, very small

distinctions. What we really came away from this

s
#
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report feeling was theimagn}tuée of which most of
the major themes out of the report were prevalent
throughout the society, throughout age grbups,
throughout the religious groups, throughout the
ethnic groups.

The differences we saw were on specific
igsues like physician assisted suicide and very
specific things like that. 'The broad feelings,
values, were pretty widely held throughout the
population.

Q Were any of these participants from
Florida?

A Yes. They were.

Q Do you know how many?

A We did two focus groups in Florida. So

there must have been about 24 to 28. Something

like that.

Q  How did you become a participant in the
study?

A Because of the prior work that we have

done at Georgia Health Decisions, we have been
doing this work in Gecrgia since 19981 and tfying
to understand citizen's values around healith care,
we have held probably 700 to 800 focus groups in

Georgia. We held thousands of community forums.
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Q My question is reélly more how would a 310
person become a participant in this study?

A They were randomly recruited from a call
list. When we go into the city, we contract with
an independent contractor that does this kind of
thing for a living. They randomly recruited
people. They tell them what the conversation is
going to be. We pay participants Lo come to get a
cross.section of people. If need be, we actually
go out and provide transportation, if people ha;e
trouble getting there, to try to make sure we do
get a good cross section of individuals.

8] Was there a type of average pay for
participants to be involved?

A Yes. It was between 35 to §50.
Generally, if you were in a rural area, you pay
somebody $3%5. If you were in New York City, you

had to pay a little more to try to get -- to

entice them.

/ o Would the focus groups be at one
particular setting?

A Yes.

Q Sc they received anywhere from 35 to $55

for an afternocon of discussion?

A It was two-and-a-half hours. Everybody




10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
i9
20
21
22
23
24

25

in one focus group would get paid the same amount
of money. So if it were in Indianapolis, you
might have gotten $35. If you were in New York
City, you might have gotten $50.

Q In your statistical configuration, was
there any way to know or question these people as
to their personal experience with end of life
decisions?

A We did. 1In addition to the focus
groups, we had 29 participants that were either
terminally ill at the time or had a family member
or someone who recently died that we did’indepth
telephone interviews with, one-on-one, to get that
personal experience of, recent experience of
people going through that situation. |

But when you randomly recruit people,
you will get the cross section of people whe have
had that experience; who have not had the
experience. Geing through it all, those
experiences come to the table in this kind of
research.

Q Do you know the statistics as far as how

many people have gone through the experience of a

loved one as opposed to -- perscnal experience as

oppozed to an ill person?
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A 1 don'‘t. Because this is quantatative
research. You don't have the quantatative numbers
that you are getting at. You can't say from focus
group resgearch, you can't say therefore 65 percent
of the pecple in the country feel this way. It is
not that kind of research. It is more when you
are trying to get to what underlies pebple's
values. What they say. Why they say it.

Q Where were the two focus groups in
Fiorida helg?

A t think one was in Miami. The other one
was in Jacksonville.

Q Did you have a specific focus group on
the Catholic faith?

A We did.

Q How many people participated in that
group?
A We had two groups. So again, there

would have been somewhere between 24 and 28.

o] Did you notice -- what other types of
faiths did you have focus groups on?

A Protestant, Jewish and Muslim.

@ Did you notice any significant
g

difference in the Catholics over --

A Not on the primary issues. Again, there
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were only like seven very specific issues that we
gaw any differences among any of the categories.
Let's see. The Catholic response for this group
shows that they are more iikely to trust
physicians. They are somewhat more comfortable
with discussions about death. More likely to
agree that physicians should initiate end of life
discussions and less likely to support mandatory
living wills. They are split in support for
physician assisted suicide.

o those are the only distinctions we
could attach to someone being Catholic, as opposed
to another religion.

Q Was part of that focus group or one of
the guestions for them teo discuss the issue of
artificial feeding? Nutrition and hydration?

A We did not discuss specific treatments
about extension of life because we were getting
more at general ideas of opinions and attitudes,
and-because most people are not that familiar with
these specific kinds of treatments.

But when we ask -- when people wouyld
make these comments about pulling the plug, we
would ask what does that mean to you. We would

ask questions like would that also include

313




W N

Y

10
i1
i2

i3

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

314
artificial feedings. Those kind of things.

Q Did you find in the different focus
groups a difference between people's values and
beliefs on life sustaining as to a ventilator
versus food? Artificial sustenance?

A Not in general. No. No. If the --
sort of the determining factor is if anything is
gsort of keeping me alive and I can't get better,
if I'm not going to regain a guality of life, then
I would not generally, the prevailing attitude is
I would not want that.

Sc the key, the key is is there a hope
for me to get better. Would I regain a guality of
life. If I'm not going to do that, don't do-.
anything to prolong ﬁy death.

Q Was there a specific question for these
groups to discuss the distinction between the

differences of a ventilator versus artificial

sustenance?
A No.
Q 50 your comments pertaining to that are

from the comments that weculd have been asked
voluntarily to pursue a further question? -
A Right. When the topic would come to the

table, the facilitator would ask the questicn what
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does that mean to you.

Q These were groups of about twelve people
each?

A Yeah. Twelve to fourteen.

Q Have you ever met Theresa Schiavo?

A I have not.

Q Have you met with her parentg?

A I have not.

o] You stated that you had reviewed
paragraph eleven of the suggestion of bias on the

part of the guardian ad litem; is that correct?

A Um-hmm. Let me make sure that was the
paragraph that I -- paragraph ten.

Q Ten.

A Um-hmm.,

Q Did you read the report of the guardian
ad litem?

A I did not.

Q Were you informed in any way about
comments that Theresa would have made pertaining
to maintaining life on a feeding tube or any kind
of artificial sustenance? ’

A Noe. No. I read this and I read the
depositions,

Q S0 you were not given any of the
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information that the parents would have thought
their daughter's wishes would be?

A No. Well, other than what is in the
depesition. I did read the depositions.

Q which were the deposgitions taken by
Mr. Feleos; correct?

A I assume.

Q Would the credibility of any of the
statements ccntained in paragraph ten, would that
change your opinion as to; one wéy or the other,
as to whether or not Theresa fell within the norm
cf your study?

A Paragraph ten basically, to me, said
this is how she had her conversation. That it was
a response 0 a stimulus. It was reaction to a
loved one that was ill. It was in reaction to an
uncle or grandmother. So from reading those
paragraphs, those pages, it was a typical way that
people have conversations.

Q Would it also be typical if she made
comments the other way?

A It would have been typical in the
stimulus for the conversation, some external
stimulus. There are pecple who do say I want £o

be kept alive no matter what, but it also would
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probably be stimulated by some external stimulus
like a TV show. Like a loved one who is iil.
Particularly for somebody in that age group.

They do not normally sit down and
inititate a conversation about; gee, one day I may
be in a2 car wreck or terminally ill and if that
happens, I want feeding tupes. I want bloed
products. It is just not what people, even in
their fifties, normally do. So having a stimulus
is a catalyst, really, for having these
conversations.

Q S¢ baged on your experience and the
study you have been involved in, the typical part
ig Theresa's making comments, one way or the
other, related to a relative or a TV show?

A Yeg. Stimulants. The prevalent
attitude. Like I said, I do not know Thereéa, 80
I can't testify about her comments, but prevalent
atritudes throughout the population tend to go’
toward not wanting to prolong life through
artificial means.

Q In your focus groups, did you make any
distinction on end of life versus a parent versus
the end of life of a child?

A We did not. That is because when I say

&
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child, I mean somebodf under 18.

Q Excuse me. I'll narrow it, A child
being from the prospective of a parent, having
your own parent die versus your own child die.

A I think that, you know, a loved one,
having a loved one die or to be in that situation
is a2 very emotional kind of thing. That people
often, when they are having to struggie with these
decisions, are struggling from the viewpoint of
loss and emotional losg on their own part rather
than what is the best care, what is the best thing
for the loved one.

Anybody over age, you Know -- it became
clear that anybody over 18 has the right to make
decisions for themselves. The laws in Georgia and
I assume in Florida give people the right, over
18, to make decisions on how far they want to
extend their life. The primary ﬁhing that came
out is if those wishes are known, then family
members, physicians, whoever else, should be
cbligated to follow those wishes, if there is some
way to understand those wishes. ‘

Q Are yourfamiliar with the financial
issues of this case?

A No. ©Not really. No.
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Q Are you aware whether or not there is
any financial burden or hardship on anyone for
Theresa's care?

A No: I'm not aware of that.

MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you. No other
questions.
THE COURT: Redirect?
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FELOS:

Q You were asked about your focus group of
Catheolics. The prevalent themes that you talked
about on direct examination, I want to ask you if
they pertain to Catholics. The prevalent theme of
self-reliance, that people don't want to be
maintained artificially if they are incontinent,
can't eat, can't brush their hair, can‘'t brush
their teeth, if they are totally dependent, is
that any different for Catholics?

A No.

Q The prevalent theme that artificial life
support was not deemed to be considered beneficial
if there was no hope of recovery, was that any
different for Cathelics?

A No.

Q The prevalent theme regarding quality of
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life, that if you can't méke your wishes known, if
you c¢an't communicate, if you can't have an
interchange, if you can't have some enjoyment of
life, that people don't want to be maintained
artificially, is that any different for Catheolics?

A No.

Q You were asked about the typicality of
Theresa's expressions and that they were triggered
by a catalyst and that's how people make them.
Regarding the content of her expression as relayed
to you, in your opinion, were they typical of the
comments, the prevalent comments in your reporc?

p-Y Very prevalent. I would say that, you
know, of the 385 pecple that we talked to maybe a
handful of them would Bay no matter what, I want
to be kept alive. Put me on machines. You_know.

50 there were just -- the other atfitude
of when it's my time, it's my time, if there is no
hope of recovery, quality of life was so prevalent
in those conversations. .It reaily was.

Q Talking about younger people, did you
have any participants in their twenties?

A Yes. In two focus groups all
participants were 18 to 34 and scattered

throughecut the other groups as well.
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Q Wag there any difference in terms of the
prevelant attitudes among the younger people than
the older people?

A One specific one that is not too
relative to this case is that they were less
fearful of talking about death, and that they were
more skeptical of physicians. Just very odd
things like that. Nothing on the prevalent tgemes
cr values and attitudes.

Q You were asked about the number of focus

groups. How people were selected. You had social

scientists working on this report?

A We did.

Q You had a statistician working on this
report?

A We did.

Q Did those persons and yourself take any

care to make gure that yéu had enocugh people,
enough focus groups in enough areas, so this would
be accepted as a sogial science work rather than
an anecdotal reporting of what people said?

A Absolutely. There was a lot of thought
in the preparation where we would go. Who the
facilitators would like for sach group and =

following through with each group to make sure
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that we would -- we stay on tfop of it. Recruiting
for every group and looking at demographics to
make sure they were the cross section we need.

I have deone this work for nine years.
The first lesson I learned is that if people don't
like what is in the report, they will gquestion
your methodology. So you better have that tiéht
or you don't have much group to stand on. This
report has been accepted very well across the
country as a good social science report.

MR. FELOS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Any recross?

MS. CAMPBELL: No, Your Honor.

THE COQURT: Thank you, ma'am. Yol may
stand down. Further witnesses?

MR. FELOS: No further witnesses at this
time. We do have on our subpoena and listed as a
witness Mr. Pearse, but opposing coungel and I
have agreed, rather than have Mr. Pearse come
twice, once now and then called in respondent's
case, that respondents will call Mr. Pearse and I
can get my guestions in during cross-examination.
I wanted to inform the Court of that. %

The only other thing I had at this time

in the case, before we close, is the introduction
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of the suggestion of bias. Your Henor, what
number are we up to?

THE COURT: I believe that is Number
Seven. 1Is there an objection?

MS. CAMPBELL: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. It will be
received. With this having been received, Mr.
Felos, does the petitioner rest?

MR. FELOS: One moment. Let me go
through my list here. Yes. That is it at tﬁis
time.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. CAMPBELL: Your Honor, since it's
quarter of 11:00, my first witness is Mary
Schindler and I think she will take guite a
while. I would suggest an early lunch hour and
then come back. 1I'1ll begin with her. Then that
will give us appropriate fime, rather than break
her testimony up.

THE COURT: It is time for a break. The
bailiff reminded me it is overdue. I have
something to do over the noon hour, so we'll justg
be back at 1:00. It does make sense for us to
break until then probably, rather than have herron

3

for an hour, then you cannot talk to her over the
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nocn hour. Sc why don't we stand in recess until
one o'clock.
MS. CAMPBELL: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE BAILIFF: All rise. Circuit court
is in recess until onego'clock.
{THEREUPON, A RECESS WAS TAKEN AT 10:50 A.M.

UNTIL 1:00 P.M.)
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